

# Minutes GAM B&R Beurs 2023

Date Time Location Minutes by Reviewed by Attachments July the 13<sup>™</sup>, 2023 13:00 APARTT, Blaak 4, Rotterdam Emkje van Zuijlekom Isabel Buch 1. List of attendants and authorizations 2. Report of the board 2022/2023 a. President b. Secretary

- c. Commissioner of Activities & Marketing
- d. Commissioner of External Affairs
- e. Commissioner of Education & Career
- f. Treasurer (financial report)
- 3. Report of the Audit Committee 2022/2023
- 4. Report of the Supervisory Board 2022/2023
- 5. Last years budgets
- 6. Slides

### Agenda

- 1. Opening
- 2. Agenda
- 3. Announcements and documents received
- 4. Approval of minutes of the SGAM 2023
- 5. Board 2022/2023 report
- 6. Financial report
- 7. Voting on documents received
- 8. Audit Committee Report
- 9. Discharge Audit Committee
- 10. Supervisory Board Report
- 11. Discharge Supervisory Board
- 12. Voting Board 2023/2024
- 13. Discharge Board 2022/2023
- 14. Installation Technical Chairman
- 15. Discharge Chairman 2022/2023
- 16. Installation Chairman 2023/2024
- 17. Discharge Technical Chairman
- 18. Installation Board 2023/2024
- 19. Voting and Installation Audit Committee
- 20. Voting and Installation Supervisory Board
- 21. Plans Board 2023/2024
- 22. Code of Conduct Change
- 23. Budget 2023/2024
- 24. Any other business
- 25. Adjournment



### 1. Opening/Welcome

Minou opens the meeting at 13:08 after everyone has had the opportunity to collect all the documents; she welcomes everyone to the General Assembly of Members of 2023.

### 2. Agenda

Minou shows the agenda and asks if the agenda is complete.

The agenda was approved.

### 3. Announcements and documents received

Minou asks Emkje whether there are any documents received.

Emkje says that she has received the supervisory board report, the audit committee report and three authorizations.

Pim Somerwil has given authorization to Alain Faddegon.

Kaching Chan has given authorization to Hanz Matthee.

Martine Witsiers has given authorization to Alain Faddegon.

4. Approval of the minutes of the SGAM 2023

Minou asks the crowd if the minutes of the SGAM 2023 have been read and approved.

The minutes are approved

### 5. Board 2022/2023 report

### President

We proudly look back on our board year. After several years that were affected by Covid, luckily we could organise all events physically again. We kicked off the year with a successful and crowded introduction period, after which we welcomed a large number of members at B&R Beurs. Throughout the year, we focused on delivering great social, career and educational activities, meanwhile launching new initiatives.

By increasing the minimum number of investment group members to 12, we aspired to contribute to the long-term continuation of groups. As a result, the average number of investment group members increased this year. On the educational side, we hosted a masterclass by William J. Kelly, the CEO & President of CAIA and to further increase the focus on the educational side of B&R Beurs, we came up with a new initiative: the stock-pitch competition. Also, we developed the ESG track and we changed the order of academies, resulting in increased academy attendance.

On the social side we innovated as well by organising the first B&R Beurs Lustrum gala. And to include all members of B&R Beurs, we set up an engagement & inclusion framework and



organised events, especially focused on international and female members. Lastly, a new record was reached for the general sponsoring by partners.

Let me start with evaluating the first committee, being Investment Week & Symposium. This year, we again organised the Investment Week and Symposium for 7 days. We kicked-off the week with the Symposium at Theater Rotterdam. Bob Homan from ING was as usual the moderator, and we welcomed speakers from Robeco, Invesco, ABN AMRO and Van Lanschot Kempen. The event was well organised by the committee. Only there was a high number of no-shows (only 400 people from 600+ applications showed up).

From Monday onwards, we continued with the Investment Week. We received approximately 1650 applications for 15 events, which is a great number. During the week, 13 from the scheduled 14 workshops took place. The second workshop of the week was cancelled due to miscommunication. The rest of the Investment Week went smoothly. On Wednesday we also held the M&A Dinner at de Tuin, which went well.

Continuing with the second committee, alumni. This year, we organised several alumni events, like drinks in Rotterdam, Amsterdam and London, the former-board dinner and a wine tasting. The first drink took place in September already, as we wanted to establish more continuity in the alumni events throughout the year. We saw attendance grow over the year and especially the former-board dinner and wine tasting were visited well and were enjoyed by alumni.

Moreover, we increased the data-collection from alumni, by adding questions about the company, city and financial segment they work in/for to the unsubscription form. With this development, the alumni network can be of more value in the future, as we will be able to contact and target alumni better.

Lastly, we created an alumni Instagram account as an additional platform, to create more engagement with what is happening in the alumni network. At this moment we have over 200 followers.

Let's move on to the first collaboration, the National Investment Competition. In the past, it was an issue that other associations did not update their data, but this year people are more motivated. The initiative is still coming from B&R Beurs and B&R Eindhoven, but the drink we organised at the start of the year with NIC increased the engagement. This resulted in an almost complete ranking now at the end of the vear. We made improvements to the back and front end of the website. It is now available in both Dutch and English. Moreover, we took further steps in preparing the NIC for a paid partnership by setting up an email address, creating email templates, making a list of suitable potential partners, professionalising the brochure, updating the collaboration agreement with the financial aspect and having a decent ranking to show. All in all, preparations are done so that the next NIC board approach partners riaht can away. In June, an end of the year event was organised by B&R Eindhoven. Board members and regular members of several associations attended the event. A cup was awarded to this year's winner.

### Maud Molenaar enters the meeting at 13:16

Then the second collaboration, Interfaculty. During the Eurekaweek we organised the Eurekaweek Party at de Huiskantine and in December we organised the Gala at Stadscafe Weena. Both were evaluated during the HGAM already. We were aiming to organise the Interfaculty Summer Party in June at Beerkeller. Unfortunately, the event was cancelled because of too low demand. We suspect this was because of the timing in the year with other events and thesis deadlines. And because the location, Beerkeller, might not that popular for be summer party. а Furthermore, we further professionalised Interfaculty by making a whitebook.



The last collaboration, LSE AIC. On 23 and 24 January, we attended the Alternative Investments Conference with 13 members, which is 3 less compared to last year. Unfortunately it was not possible to bring more members this year. We travelled to London by train. We had the annual Alumni drink at 'De Hems' bar in London on Saturday. Sunday was there to explore London. On Monday and Tuesday, we attended the AIC and on Wednesday we had two company visits, about which Bob will tell you more later on. The collaboration and contact with AIC were alright and we already made some efforts to secure more spots for the conference for next year.

This year, we were devoted to increasing the inclusion and connection between members at B&R Beurs. To this end, we sent a survey to the members at the start of the year to learn more about how they rate the culture at our association. Moreover, we interviewed several international and mixed/female investment groups. Insights from the survey and interviews were, together with academy and committee data, used to create an engagement & inclusion strategy. We finalised this strategy recently and it partly serves as advice for future boards. There were also some ideas we implemented this year already. First of all, we took an active role in stimulating cross-investment group activities, as this lowers the threshold for groups to get together and strengthens the growing association as a whole. We sent out a form to the chairs where they could indicate what kind of activities and type of investment groups they were interested in. We subsequently matched groups based on these preferences.

Jay Otten and Tim van Duijn enter the meeting at 13:19

Moreover, we organised a chair drink in July. This drink was for new chairs to meet each other right away, and it hopefully stimulated interaction between investment groups. 20 investment groups attended the drink and gave positive feedback. However, for future editions we recommend to do this drink earlier in June as a lot of international investment group board members already left the Netherlands on July 4th. Lastly, more new initiatives related to engagement and inclusion were scheduled in the Future of Finance days that we organised in March. These themed days turned out not to be the optimal format, and they are evaluated by Tristan later on.

Now we arrived at the last project, the long-term strategy. Last year, my predecessor initiated a long-term strategy for the association. This Road to 2027 is a framework that consists of goals, potential means and boundaries and it was halfway finished at the end of his year. At the start of my year, we continued to work on this with the supervisory board and recently it was finalised. It has been shared with the f.t. 40th board, so it can be implemented from next year onwards.

### Secretary

Thanks Minou.

### Subscriptions, Unsubscriptions and Totals

This year, we started with 1220 members. This was later adjusted to 1189 members due to double registrations and some members that were still in the system from previous years. During the year, 551 new members joined our society, which brings us to a total of 1740 members.

As always, we have to say goodbye to a share of our members at the end of the academic year. This year, 721 members canceled their membership. This is 41.4% of the total amount of members. On the slides you can see an overview of the way members canceled their



subscriptions. As you can see, over 70% canceled their membership via the website. This is way more than last year.

### Diversity

Diversity among our members is one of the themes of the long term goals set in the past few years. We think it is very beneficial to our society to have a diverse group of members. It can be quite hard to improve the diversity and it is crucial that the boards come to think about how they can improve upon it.

### Investment Groups & Brokers

In total, B&R Beurs had 46 investment groups. There were 5 new investment groups founded. The situation with the bank and brokers is still the same for the investment groups. We tried to open accounts at ING but they stopped opening accounts for societies till June. ING could still be an option for next year. The upcoming board explores the possibilities at ING for the upcoming year.

### Almanac Committee

First of all, I want to thank the almanac committee for their hard work and effort to make this year's almanac a great success. We introduced some new pages. Like a board game, which B&R type are you, sliders and a page about things you can say during sex and investing. This year, we made use of orange book again and we ordered 150 units. At this moment, 120 are sold. To make a complete edition of the almanac, we decided to extend the deadline. The almanac will be available in September. If you have not ordered one yet, do it now.

### Lustrum Committee

To prepare the upcoming lustrum year, we started this year with the lustrum committee. Together with the committee we brainstormed about events that cover all three pillars of B&R Beurs. We end the year with a lustrum opening gala, in collaboration with the activities committee. For next year, there are several events prepared.

### **Activities & Marketing**

### **Activities**

Thank you, Emkje! Before the HGAM, we hosted a Brewery Tour, the Christmas & New Year Dinner, an Active Members Day, and the Pub Crawl. I already evaluated these activities, so make sure to check the minutes of the HGAM 2023.

After half a year of activities, it was time for the Cantus again. This year, we sold 140 tickets, which was a little bit less than last year. Probably due to exams. However, during the event we noticed that less people were better as we had walking space in between the tables. If my successor wants to make the cantus bigger next year, I would advise him or her to look at other venues to host it.

The international karaoke was part of the Future of Finance days, but I organized it together with the activities committee. The event itself was quite a success, but the initial purpose of it got lost in translation. We would have loved some internationals present at the event, but in the end only Dutch students joined. Tristan will get back to this problem.

In April we hosted the yearly pooling tournament at Poolcafe Delfshaven which was a great event and the participants had a great time. We also offered the opportunity for them to play darts. The only downside was that Delfshaven is quite far away from city centre.



The second active members event was an active members dinner at 't Zusje. There were 50 people present and we enjoyed the evening with a lot of tapas. This time, we knew exactly how many members were coming because of the reminders we sent to them, which worked quite well. If there is enough budget, I would advise my successor to do this event again as there is an opportunity to really sit down and have a good conversation with other active members.

This year, we hosted a wine tasting with 70 people at Walsjerot for the first time. The participants got a card and could choose and tap their own wines, they also received a lot of snacks. I got a lot of great feedback from the participants and the event was sold out in no time.

The second edition of Open EUR Festival took place on June 6th. The event was set up big, but the attendance was a bit disappointing. Many people had their thesis deadline and, although we had marketing throughout the campus, many people hadn't heard of it. The next edition will take place in September, and it will be the opening party of the Erasmus University's 8th Lustrum, so we expect this edition to attract many people. For upcoming years, we would advise the board to think of the Open EUR Festival as a normal activity, not as an activity that is going to turn out break-even due to the losses of previous years.

After a year of absence, Liga Investimento took place again at Antibarbari. The tournament was fully sold out with 12 teams participating, and some teams on the waiting list as well. I would advise my successor to organize this, but make it a bit bigger than last year to give all Investment Groups a chance to participate in this amazing event.

This year's celebration of the birthday of B&R Beurs, the Dies, was a fun event at the Huiskantine. However, the timing of the event was not right as many students had exams and at the end of the year it's always busy with other activities. Next year, they should host it in April, which they did last year as well. In this way, the event will be more crowded and therefore the celebration will be bigger.

One social drink I would like to mention is the last Social Drink, the Cocktail Drink. During this drink, we, together with Apartt, introduced the B&R Cocktail. This cocktail will be available at Apartt anytime you want, and during the Social Drinks it will be available for a reduced price.

On the 30th of June, we opened the Lustrum Year with a festive Lustrum Opening Gala. The ticket sale was disappointing. We were surprised by this, as we took the feedback that gala's are too expensive into consideration and therefore offered two ticket prices. One with 5 coins, and the other with 10 coins. This way, the attendees could choose how much they wanted to pay ( $\leq 23,50$  or  $\leq 37,-$ ). We asked for feedback to all chairs and they indicated that people still had exams, vacation, and almost all internationals went back home already. On top of this, many other associations planned their own activity on this date, which made it even harder to invite them as well. We learned a valuable lesson from this that we should take this into account when planning such a big event. The evening itself was a success and everyone had a great time. However, the loss B&R made on this gala due to the attendance number was a downside.

I closed my year as commissioner of Activities and Marketing with the end of the year activity: the Beach BBQ and Volleyball at Hoek van Holland at beachclub FFtijd. We traveled to Hoek van Holland with 60 members, and enjoyed a BBQ and unlimited drinks for 3 hours. The BBQ was good and people enjoyed themselves playing volleyball until the late hours.

### <u>Marketing</u>

As I mentioned at the GAM, after the Introduction & Formation Period, we reached an amount of nearly 2500 followers, compared to last year of 2000 and the year before that of 1500. I managed to market most of the activities in time. However, this was sometimes challenging



during big events Future of Finance days. I also got some feedback that not all information is at each marketing channel. For example: the registration period was sometimes missing, the location of an event was not known yet. All in all, I would advise my successor to be consistent and not market something when not everything about an event is known.

Next to that, we, the Marketing Committee and I, introduced the Bi-Weekly schedule, where we share a clear overview of the upcoming events and deadlines, as this was some of the feedback we received from the Chairman meeting. During the last few weeks of the academic year, I stopped sharing the bi-weekly schedule as there were no new events to be promoted. We're incorporating the Board WhatsApp group chat and weekly mail for more engagement, as this is more effective these days. We also included more posters in the marketing of events we offer such as the Future of Finance days and the Investor Exam. To attract more potential board members, I introduced a board take over highlight, so everyone could watch these stories at any time.

### External

This year marks another success in our pursuit of connecting members to their next step in finance. This is, of course, mostly dependent on the partners and the quality of partnerships and events we offer. Let us start with the partner portfolio.

### <u>Partners</u>

Building on the basis formed by previous Commissioners of External Affairs, we increased the number of partners to 37 (including IW&S and LSE partners). Here, we parted ways with companies that were less of a fit and connected to 10 new partners. Our aim was to cover all segments within the financial sector for all members.

The first group of partners to be discussed are the Asset Managers. Here, we find some familiar faces such as Aegon, Cardano, CBRE, Privium and some of the biggest pension funds such as APG and PGGM. This year, we also added some bigger names such as Van Lanschot Kempen and Invesco where both participated in IW&S and the former attended one of the Women in Finance dinners.

In terms of Banking and Deal-making, we have extended our collaboration with ING. Moreover, NIBC also continued their partnership with us. In the M&A landscape, we retained our connection to PwC by organising a successful Women in Finance dinner. KPMG's strategy consulting arm is a new partner and also joined the Women in Finance dinners. By adding them and establishing connections to Deloitte and EY, we have gained ground in connecting to the big four. As M&A boutiques have proven to be a nice stepping stone for our members, we collaborated with familiar names such as IMAP and Yes Corporate Finance at our M&A dinner. Concluding this segment with Private Equity, we have progressed to more partners in this regard. We have now hosted activities with Egeria, Gimv and Vortex Capital Partners.

On the more quantitative side of our association, we have retained partnerships with the familiar four: Da Vinci, IMC, Flow Traders and Optiver. We have also connected London-based G-Research. Extending our connection to the huge world of Commodity Trading, we have established a partnership with the Erasmus Commodity & Trade Centre. They connected us to COUNT Energy, Interfood and Vitol. Furthermore, we have managed to keep some big and influential players in this area: Cefetra and Transtrend.

This amounts up to €43,259.62 in general sponsoring, beating our target of €30,000 which was set at the beginning of the year. This is another record set this year – credits, of course, also go out to Bob, improving the record of €34,366.00 which was achieved last year.

**Events** 



This year consisted of five cycles spread throughout the year and some standalone events. The Women in Finance dinners will be discussed later on. Bob will touch upon the Financial Engineering Cycle.

### **B&R Beurs Career Days**

A returning event was the B&R Beurs Career Days which had 300 applicants. This year, this cycle consisted of nine events. Judging from the feedback we received, it was a success. The participants have said to like the content of the activities as well as the format with some relevant partners. The partners (*Van Lanschot Kempen; IMAP; Transtrend; KPMG; Aegon; AF Advisors; Egeria; Da Vinci; AFS Group*) were happy with the participants. They did mention, however, that the workshop times and duration could be more flexible. The Da Vinci inhouse day unfortunately got called off because of too many cancellations. Some thought should be put into how to navigate this in the next years.

### **B&R Beurs In-House Cycle**

We then proceeded with the B&R Beurs In-House Cycle. This was an event which we introduced in our schedule rather late. We did so as we noticed high demand for inhouse days from both sides. Unfortunately, we managed to get less applicants than expected and this resulted in the cancellation of the APG event. We suspect that the timing of the registrations (during the Christmas holidays) was not ideal. The Vortex event ran smoothly.

### B&R Beurs Commodity & Trading Days

In March, we organised the B&R Beurs Commodity & Trading Days in collaboration with the Erasmus Commodity & Trade Centre. The latter provided us with big names within the commodity trading space (*Cefetra; COUNT Energy; Interfood; Vitol*). Furthermore, we had some quantitative partners (*IMC Trading; Flow Traders; Transtrend*). We organised a successful Commodity Trading Dinner where we connected 25 students to three partners; and multiple inhouse days. Unfortunately, the turnout to the (especially quantitative) events were disappointing. We feel that the name of the event did not fully appeal to pure quants. We reached a number of 137 applications for the six events.

### Investment Week & Symposium

As mentioned before, the Investment Week & Symposium was a huge success. With 1,646 applications for the 15 events and around 600 tickets given out for the Symposium, we really elevated the event to the next level. The event consisted of a M&A day; a M&A boutique day; a fund day; an asset management day; two trading days; a private equity; and a M&A dinner. We got some very nice names in there partially due to the collaboration with FSR for this event. The Symposium was well-received too as the event itself was very well put together – thanks to a good collaboration and committee. Some topics were too similar though, and we have instructed our successors with possible ways to resolve this. To specify, we had ING returning, and new speakers in Robeco, Van Lanschot Kempen, Invesco and ABN Amro. On our side, Cardano, Cefetra, Flow Traders and Privium collaborated.

### <u>Other</u>

Some standalone events we hosted were the M&A dinner and the Risk Management dinner. The format worked well and both events had a nice number of applicants.

### **Professionalization**

Furthermore, great efforts have been made in accomplishing our aim of professionalising the role and our events. This adds a lot of value to both our members and partners. We have introduced standardized feedback forms to collect the data of all of our events. The objective of collecting more data has been pursued in all different domains of the association.

We also constructed a form to structure the communication between us and the partners more efficiently. This prevents (too) frequent emails and calls which go back and forth and overall just smoothens the process on both sides. Moreover, we have made extensive efforts in capturing all events. These pictures are widely available on the website and shared with the partners – who, in turn, often post them on social media. Additionally, they are also used for our own marketing.



### City Trip Committee

The City Trip was truly one of the highlights of the year. We travelled with a group of 36 members (30 tickets; 4 committee members; 2 board members) to the cornerstone of modern civilization: Athens. The trip was filled up within two days – mostly due to good marketing and the price/quality of the trip. Credits go out to the very capable and motivated committee for this achievement.

There was one hiccup in booking the flight tickets as we made the wrong reservation and booked a day shorter than intended. This was resolved by making some rearrangements in the planning and coordinating with the hostel to book for one less night. Unfortunately, this meant some concessions in the amount of free time during the trip.

Besides this, the program was very well received (with the exceptions of the museum and openair cinema) and the feedback that came in mentioned the very high price/quality of the trip. The communication was timely and clear; though the request was to send the packing list earlier. The hostel was very nice. We divided everyone into the rooms and that would also be a recommendation for next year. Lastly, we want to highlight that the marketing this year was spot-on. We worked with teasers and communicated the dates as early as January.

### Project Management Committee

This year, the Project Management Committee has finally been revived and reinstated righteously. The committee has shown that it can be a connector of the different pillars upon which B&R Beurs is built – which the Engagement & Inclusion plan has shown to be crucial. The year consisted out of the following events:

#### Future of Finance Days

The Future of Finance Days were introduced to create more engagement of all members throughout the whole association. The results were mixed.

The event was supposed to be kicked off by the returning Investment Conference. Though extensive efforts and preparations were made, the event was cancelled due to the lack of speakers. If started on time, this could turn out as a nice event. The question remains if enough demand from the members exists.

Then, we organised two Women in Finance dinners. The first one was hosted by PwC at Fjord Eat & Drink. It turned out to be a success. The decoration and atmosphere was good. PwC only took recruiters with them and that's something we would advise against in the future. The other dinner was organised with KPMG and Van Lanschot Kempen. Same format, different day – only less recruiters.

To engage more internationals in our social pillar, we organised a karaoke and a pub quiz. The karaoke was very fun and Fame has become a true hotspot on Thursdays, but no international members were present. We feel that dividing these events throughout the year could engage more international members as the pub quiz was well-attended. We hosted the pub quiz alongside ESN and we delivered most attendees. It was fun, location could be better but a good-old night at ESN Tuesday made up for that.

Lastly, we planned the speed-networking event. This event on paper has great potential in creating meaningful connections between investment groups. We prepared some talking points (i.e., investment-related; social; and philosophic). Unfortunately, this did not turn out in the way we envisioned. We had some applications but nowhere near enough to provide a quality event. We suspect that the extensive week and the name were the culprits.

### **Stock-Pitch Competition**

The Stock-Pitch Competition was a fan-favourite. We had 9 applying teams of which 6 handed in a pitch deck. The best 5 were selected and battled it out in front of a jury of ACTIAM, Cardano and Gimv. The event and its pitches were quite professional and included a catered break; subsequent drinks; prize money of €375; a photographer; and Slido for the audience to ask



questions and upvote others. We had around 60 attendees. The event was received well and I recommend the continuation of this initiative as it fits the identity of B&R Beurs rather well.

Hanz: How are you feeling? Tristan: Not the best, woke up with a headache.

Tristan chugs a beer

### **Education and Career**

This year, we further increased the attendance of both our educational and career events. This contributes to further development of these two pillars within our association. Let us start with education.

Education

### **Academies**

The academies went well this year. Due to the fact that we changed the order of the academies (i.e., finish each track before a new one started), the attendance slightly increased. Incentives such as books for all academies and the pizzas after the last academy of the academic year seemed to work. The following figure represents the attendance *based on the filled out attendance by the attendants themselves.* This gives a proxy of the actual attendants, but cannot be considered as the actual numbers. For the next board, it is strongly advised to count all attendants during all academies. Ideally, for all masterclasses and Professional Academies, we would like members to subscribe for the event on our website.



The following tracks were presented: Fundamental Analysis, Macro Investing, Alternative Investments, Derivatives, ESG Investing, and Portfolio Management. These tracks were presented throughout the year in this order. ESG Investing has officially become part of the academy tracks this year and was quite popular, especially compared to Algorithmic Trading which was in that place until last year. Furthermore, data on the attendees has been captured more extensively this year.

The academy committee has done great work this year and ensured that the level of knowledge within our association further increased.



Ranking Attendance			
No	Investment Group	Points	
1	Audacity		87
2	Vico Investments		32
3	Hercules		26
4	CFQ		19
5	Vae Victis		16

Audacity had the highest attendance for all (professional) academies. Therefore, they received a price of € 500.- to spend on a social activity with their investment group.

### Professional Academies

For all tracks except Portfolio Management, we organised Professional Academies. For the ESG Investing track, we even had 2 Professional Academies.

Fundamental Analysis:SilverCrossMacro Investing:APGAlternative Investments:CAIADerivatives:Da VinciESG Investing:Gimv, AF Advisors (pilot case)Portfolio Management:-

For 3 of these Professional Academies, we hosted networking drinks at either Erasmus Paviljoen or Café 'In de Smitse'. This remains a perfect way to informally speak to these partners about topics in practice and their career paths, while enjoying some (non-)alcoholic drinks and snacks.

We continued the ranking of attendance for all (professional) academies. This seemed successful to further incentivise our members to attend. The attendance price went to Audacity. It worked well to double the attendance points for professional academies.

Private Markets Seminar by CEO & President of CAIA: William (Bill) J. Kelly On December 2nd, 2022, we welcomed the CEO & President of CAIA, William Kelly, to our campus. He held a seminar about perspectives, opportunities, and challenges in private markets. This was very informative and great to welcome him on campus. This would be great to organise again in the next academic year.

### **Masterclasses**

Four masterclasses took place, which were not part of the academies. Two masterclasses by Transtrend and AF Advisors were part of the B&R Beurs Career Days. Harold de Boer gave a very interesting masterclass about the carbon footprint of trading futures. The third masterclass was given by Zanders. They gave an interesting masterclass about Treasury, which is a topic that is not well known among all members. Lastly, the fourth masterclass was by G-Research, who told us more about quantitative research in London.

### Investor Exam

Then, as the final topic within the education space, the Investor Exam. The Investor Exam took place on Thursday, June 1st. This year, 21 people actually took the exam, out of which 12 people passed the exam. All these people were eligible for one of the two CAIA scholarships that CAIA gives away. The passing rate was decreased to 62.5%, since this exam was made slightly worse compared to previous years. Moreover, creating a passing rate based on a 5.5/10, which is the passing rate at Erasmus University Rotterdam, while adjusting the estimated correct answers by guessing, resulted in this rate.

### Flow Traders Investment Competition

Well, the biggest thing we actually do within our association, the Flow Traders Investment Competition. This year, we could luckily organise this competition the full period again, so no simulation competition was needed. 15 investment groups have used Saxo and 31 investment



groups have used eToro. This solution has not been optimal, due to differences in transaction costs and spreads. Therefore, it is recommended to keep looking for other solutions.

### Financial Engineering Cycle

This year, the Financial Engineering Cycle (FEC) was cancelled. We managed to schedule two masterclasses. Unfortunately, these were cancelled last minute. For this year, we already recommended the next board to further develop the structure of this event with the aim of ensuring this event to successfully take place. This includes a more strict collaboration with FAECTOR, ensuring that all tasks are clear for both associations.

### ESE Finance 1

This year, we continued the collaboration with the Finance 1 course at Erasmus School of Economics. 52 students participated in the competition. We believe this is still a valuable collaboration with Erasmus University to maintain a sustainable relation. It is recommended for the new Commissioner of Education and Career to try to make the competition more involved in the course. Discuss together with the professor whether it is nice to have the additional exercises again, like a few years ago.

### Career

### <u>Bloomberg Cycle</u>

The Bloomberg Cycle was held in March. On three consecutive days (i.e., Monday until Wednesday), we held three workshops, each from 5pm-7pm. The Career Committee prepared and further updated these tutorials and were responsible for these workshops. 20 members could participate. Those who completed all workshops, were given the B&R Beurs Bloomberg Certificate. This was again very successful, as the event was full in 2 minutes after the registrations opened. The next board is already recommended to organise this cycle at least twice the next year.

### Mentorship Program

For the Mentorship Program, we opened the registrations in May, which was quite late this year. In total, 22 members and 9 mentors signed up for this program. We managed to match 7 people to 5 mentors. For the next year, it is recommended to start earlier in the beginning of the second half year. Moreover, the marketing could be improved for this.

### **Career Orientation & Development**

Regarding this program, formerly known as the Recruitment Database, has not been given much attention this year. This brings us to the aim of the career committee. Meetings have taken place with the next Commissioner of Education & Career about the future structure of both this committee and this concept. Ideally, you prefer more experienced students in this committee, whilst these students most of the time do not want to join a committee anymore. That is why it is recommended to let relatively young students join this committee to be responsible for the Bloomberg Cycle and Mentorship Program. After some years, these people could be responsible for the meetings with members to discuss their possible future career paths.

### LSE AIC Trip

As part of the career pillar, we organised the London School of Economics Alternative Investments Conference (LSE AIC) trip again this year. As already discussed, this trip lasted from Saturday to Wednesday.

On Wednesday, we were welcomed at Man Group and PIMCO for a presentation about their firm and available career opportunities. For next year, we would definitely recommend visiting Man Group again. Man Group is a well known hedge fund in London, which is specifically looking for people with a STEM background. This profile is in line with the people that the LSE AIC is looking for.

### **Professionalisation**



As part of further development for this role as well as B&R Beurs as a whole, we came with some recommendations for the next Commissioner of External Affairs and Commissioner of Education & Career. We recommended a better structure around the organisation of career and educational events. This includes the communication with partners, registration periods and deadlines, sending feedback forms, and automation of creating name badges.

Furthermore, larger updates have been made to the white book, to further increase the quality of the handover to the 40th board. This has been done in particular for this role, but together with the entire board, we also applied changes to the white book (i.e. checklist of all matters that we cannot forget when training the new board).

Alain: This is a question for you and Tristan. How many members found an internship through either your events or other events with partners?

Bob: We have no insights in that, that is something for the long term to look into. For example, make something on the website that you can apply via the website. I know someone is doing an internship at Cefetra.

Alain: Nobody applies through the board with any partners.

*Tristan: We don't work with direct placement anymore.* 

Bob chugs a beer

### Treasurer

Thank you Bob. I will first give my report including the committees that I supervised, the debtors of the association, a membership analysis. Then I will continue with the Financial report of book year 2022-2023.

### Ski Trip Committee

The Ski Trip Committee took place before the HGAM so I will not go into details again. The committee had three members this year and we have used the services of Totally Snow just like last year. The length of the trip was 10 days which was too long to get a lot of members along with the trip. Also, we started planning the trip too late which left us with less options for the trip itself. For next year the ski trip committee is already running, so this might not be a problem for the upcoming year.

### **Editorial Committee**

Then, on to the Editorial Committee, things went smoothly with the editorial committee. Every week, one of the members wrote the Investment Competition Update article and every month one of the members writes an In Depth Article. We are happy with the quality of the pieces that have been written. The level of writing in the committee differs quite a lot, which has led to a lower frequency of posting the articles and competition updates. Next to that, we did not do any interviews with alumni because I did not reach out to them.

The committee has written three articles for the Investment Week & Symposium magazine. The themes were: yield curves, artificial intelligence and a cashless society. Overall we were happy with the quality of the articles for the magazine, and one of the articles has an extended version on the B&R Beurs website.

### Debtors



From the summer onwards, so before the Introduction Period, I have been collecting the unpaid invoices from the previous years. At the beginning of the year, we had 26 unpaid invoices. This has now been reduced to 4 unpaid invoices. We decided to write off all of these invoices this year. From the year 2022-2023 we have 6 unpaid invoices, which will be up to my successor to get paid. This will most likely be possible via emails or calls. Furthermore, we decided to leave the amount of the invoices that have been unpaid for more than 90 days in the provision. At this moment this amount is below a thousand euros which means we will take more than eight thousand euros out of that provision.

We see these 90 days as an appropriate threshold as the Commissioner of External Affairs and the Commissioner of Education & Career are in close contact with the partners and we decided to be more alert to overdue invoices. Therefore, we believe that the provision should not be as high as previous years. We have ended this year with a clean slate and I hope that my successors can keep it that way.

### Membership Analysis

This is the first year we have used the new direct debit contract. We saw that it is nice to take all the money in one go and then be able to focus on only the members who reversed the payment.

As stated before, we have 538 new members this year. Of these members, 49.8% have paid their membership fee through mollie. We can see that this percentage is only increasing since this was around 21% last year. It can be expected that this will only increase in the upcoming years. From the new members, 5 members have reversed the payment, which comes down to a reversal rate of 0.98%.

For the members who have been with us for more than a year we have the following numbers. 89 members do not have a (correct) IBAN in Genkgo. I have mailed these people four times throughout the year, but they did not pay in the end. Besides the people without a correct IBAN in Genkgo we also had 76 members who did have an IBAN but did not pay for other reasons. We had 8 members who had already been deregistered in previous years and 23 members who were in the membership database more than once. Then we have 21 members who reversed the payment 4 times. This leaves us with a reversal rate of 13.96% for the existing members.

As for all of the members 81 members have not paid due to a failed incasso, and 89 members do not have a (correct) IBAN in Genkgo. In total this comes down to a reversal rate of 9.67%. As said before, I have emailed all members without an IBAN at least four times with requests to pay, however they did not. The members who reversed the direct debit or for whom the direct debit failed have been emailed after every collection batch. I have also tried to collect their membership fees at least four times, however this has been unsuccessful. At the end of this year, we have decided to unsubscribe all the members who reversed the payments and all members who do not have a correct IBAN and failed to reply to the emails.

Since we unsubscribed all members who failed to pay their membership fees this year, and the website includes an IBAN check when members register, we believe that the storno percentages can really improve in the upcoming years.

### Cost Division

Finally the cost division of the association. We can see that we have spent 60% of our money on Food & Drinks. We of course spend a lot of money on social drinks, and many of the activities include food and drinks. Therefore, it is not a huge surprise that this is our largest spending.



Food & Drinks is followed by Venue & Accommodation. A large contributor to that part of spending is the Introduction Weekend. Then travelling, these are costs we make for the City Trip, LSE AIC trip and travelling expenses the Commissioner of External Affairs and Commissioner of Education & Career make to close sponsorship deals.

Alain Faddegon: On the Storno: you unsubscribed the members that did not pay; where they informed; cause I can imagine that they just have no money?

Noa: No they are not active anymore and they are also not informed but I did send everyone multiple emails that if they do not pay they cannot participate in events. Members that participated in events, had to pay the membership fee before they could participate. An example of this was during the London trip.

### 6 Financial Report

### Profit & Loss Statement

So, moving forward to the results of the year 2022-2023. I will first discuss the income and then move on to the expenses.

With the aforementioned reversal rates, we arrive at the following membership fees of  $\notin$ 77,219.40 and subscription fees of  $\notin$ 5330. This is lower than presented during the GAM 2022 because we were counting on 600 new members back then. In the end we did not reach this, and adjusted at the HGAM. We can see that the subscription fees are higher than expected during the HGAM and the membership fees are slightly higher than expected during the HGAM.

The Erasmus Subsidy for the first years we have as new members is a maximum value set by the EUR, for this we need 74 first years as new members, which we reached to we received the maximum subsidy here.

Then one of the highlights of this financial year, the general sponsors. This year Bob and Tristan raised €43,261 in General Sponsoring. As you can see at the GAM 2022 they had a target of €30,000 which they surpassed greatly. This definitely contributed to the great year we could have as an association.

Moving on to Investment Week & Symposium. The revenues were lower than last year due to the falling out of one partner during the Investment Week and difficulties of finding a speaker for the Investment Symposium. Even though we aimed for a break even result on Investment Week & Symposium we did not manage to do so. This is due to the fact that some costs were not made in the end and some costs were way lower than we had budgeted. This was, however, not communicated so I was unable to adjust for this.

LSE AIC, Introduction Period and Introweekend revenues have already been discussed during the HGAM. As these events were already finished before the HGAM the results did not change.

What did change are the Revenues for Activities. These were lower than expected, because we have organised many events but for a low price. Therefore, the revenues were lower. We did try to let that reflect in the expenses, but I will get back to this later.

The revenues for the city trip ended lower than expected during the HGAM. The city trip was one day shorter which resulted in lower ticket prices. This reflected in the expenses, as they were decreased with the same amount.



Revenues Almanac, we have sold quite some Almanacs of the year 2021-2022 and then sold 115 Almanacs before July 1st 2023. These revenues are higher than expected, since I forgot to account for the fact that members would buy Almanacs from the previous year. I did let my successor account for that.

Revenues Investment Guides, this year we published the third edition of the Investment Guide. This edition was bought by several members and B&R Eindhoven bought 30 Investment Guides. The revenues are lower than expected during the GAM 2022 because B&R Eindhoven took less Investment Guides than expected back then.

As mentioned before, we took a lot of money out of the bad debtors provision. This is what we could take out of the provision, after writing off the unpaid invoices that are older than 1 year.

As the last part of the Income we have the Etoro revenue. As you all know a part of the Investment Groups have made use of the services of Etoro. As people might expect we have a sponsorship deal with Etoro. This led to revenues of €11,757.76, these were not accounted for during the GAM 2022 because we thought there was a possibility that we would not use Etoro again. However, we did, which led to these revenues.

This leads to total revenues of €211,364.64

Moving forward to the expenses of the past year. Starting with the Active Members Expenses. We decided to increase these the past year to appreciate our active members more. From this budget all active members could have dinner with their committee for which €25 per member was paid, we organised two active members days and we gave the active members B&R Beurs socks. Also the Chair Drink that was organised for the first time this year was part of the Active Members Budget. In the end we spent less than expected, because people simply do not show up for an active members day without cancelling.

Then the Alumni Expenses. During the HGAM this budget was increased to aim and strengthen the Alumni Network.

Board Expenses and Supervisory Board Expenses have been completely used this year, as every year.

The General Expenses ended higher than budgeted during the HGAM. This is due to our Board Recruitment where we have had many coffee appointments with potential candidates. Also, the transaction costs of Mollie have been quite high every month.

The Licensing expenses were lower than expected during the HGAM. We changed our Mailchimp account to a cheaper one and I have estimated the ABN AMRO costs too high, because the interest rates became positive during the year.

The Lustrum expenses are as expected. €3950 has been put in the provision, €1000 went to the Lustrum Openings Gala and €50 went to the Lustrum Theme Reveal video.

Then the social drinks, these are right on budget with the GAM 2022. Because of the increasing beer prices we have increased the prices of beer during the social drinks. This with the goal to keep the prices the same for as long as possible during the social drinks. This goal was reached, because we have not had to close the tap during a drink after the price increase.

The introduction period expenses have changed slightly after the GAM because we are yet to



receive three invoices. I have estimated the values of these invoices with the information we have at this point, and accounted for these invoices in this year.

Introduction weekend expenses did not change after the HGAM.

The external relations expenses ended up being lower than presented at the HGAM, many meetings have been online.

As said before, the Investment Week & Symposium expenses are lower than the revenues, so we made a profit here. Next year this should not happen.

The Future of Finance Expenses were increased at the HGAM. However, two out of the three planned activities were organised. Therefore we did not spend the entire budget. The other two events could also easily be realized with the given budget.

LSE AIC expenses have already been discussed during the HGAM.

Moving on to the Activities Expenses. The revenues have decreased, which you would then also expect for the expenses. This we did not manage to do sadly. For this are two explanations . First, we have had a lovely surprise from last year. This was an invoice for a substantial amount of money, which led to higher expenses. Secondly, as discussed earlier the ticket sale of the Lustrum Opening Gala was disappointing. This led to even higher activities expenses. I put all of the extra loss on the Activities Expenses because I did not want the Lustrum next year to bear the brunt of the Lustrum Opening Gala.

Printed Publications Expenses are also higher, we wanted to have a complete Almanac with all activities and the entire Investment Competition. Therefore, we needed extra pages which increased the price.

City Trip Expenses have already been discussed during the revenues. Ski Trip Expenses have already been discussed during the HGAM. These have also not changed.

Academy Expenses have stayed just under budget. We have given away a book for the Kahoot winner every academy, had drinks after the CAIA professional academy, offered pizza and drinks after the last academy and gave away a prize to the Investment Groups that had the highest academy attendance.

Constitution drink has already been discussed during the HGAM.

Exact expenses have been calculated based on the monthly fee, this has increased throughout the year, therefore the increase. Same goes for the website expenses, which is also based on a monthly fee. This increased because we had to pay to keep the B&R Beurs App in the App Store.

Career expenses are higher than anticipated. This is due to the organisation of the Stock Pitch Competition. We had catering and a cash prize leading to increased expenses. However, as this event was new and included partners we thought it would be important to organise it well.

The marketing expenses went to an app for QR codes which have been used during the Introduction Period, gathering information for the Almanac, Ski Trip and Career days. Next to that we ordered B&R Beurs Coins for during the Gala. These can be used again, however following boards need to be cautious with using them as they can get value.



Investment guides expenses, we ordered the 3rd edition of the investment guide this year and decided to replace the goodiebag for new members with a free investment guide. Based on the cost price of the Investment Guide, how many guides we gave away and how many were sold, these are the costs.

Investment group expenses, these are the LEI codes for every investment group. This has also been calculated based on the annual fee for extending the LEI codes, which was also increased during the year. We have not had to buy any new LEI codes.

Then the depreciation, we have a depreciation plan, so this is automatically calculated. The legal costs are for the statutes change we had to do this year. Bad debtors is the write off of one debtor that was done last book year but accidentally placed in this book year.

This gives total expenses of €207,779.48 leading to an operating result of €3585,16.

Finally, the interest rates have raised below 0% at some point leading to interest income. This leads to a net result of €3,600.57

### *Hanz: I have 2 questions:*

I know we spend a lot of money if my year but i don't think we had an operating result of €35.943,87.

*Noa: I will look into it and change it for the minutes.* 

Secondly, I was wondering the spread for activities was around -30k, in HGAM -24K in results now -34K almost threefold net loss on the activities. How is that in line with moving more money to career and education. Because it has been going on for a while now.

Noa: we tried to move more money to education. But it is very difficult, the events pay for themselves. The loss for the Gala is a big part of that and the invoice from last year. That declares the spread.

### **Balance Sheet**

To conclude the Financial Report 2022-2023 I will discuss the balance sheet. As you can see we did not add any assets this year. The value of the assets did decrease as the cumulative depreciation for electronics and non-electronic equipment increased. This also showed on the Profit & Loss Statement. The cash has increased because we have had some (international) new members that paid their membership fees in cash, also "statiegeld" from beer during the introduction weekend was returned in cash. The depletion of the bad debtors provision is also visible, the adding to the lustrum provision is also visible on the balance sheet. Besides that there are provisions for costs of this year that may still come.

Finally, I want to thank you and the 39th board for this year. I have really enjoyed it and want to wish the 40th board all the best.

No objections. Board report and statements have been approved.

- 7. Voting on documents received
- 8 Audit Committee Report

Tim reads out the Audit Committee Report as a member of the audit committee.



### 9. Discharge Audit Committee

Tim van Duijn, Ahmed Mustafa and Chen Chen Chao are discharged as members of the audit committee.

10. Supervisory Board Report

Alain reads out the supervisory board report as chairman of the supervisory report.

### 11. Discharge Supervisory Board

Alain Faddegon, Kaching Chan, Martine Witsiers, Mathilde de Jonge, Job Koning, Jay Otten & Hanz Matthee are discharged as members of the supervisory board.

### 12. Voting Board 2023/2024

Name	Function	ln Favour	Against	Abstain
Luc Boender	Chairman	27		2
Isabel Buch	Secretary	28		1
Martijn Kuck	Treasurer	28		1
Sem Burger	Commissioner of Activities & Marketing	28		1
Robert Collignon	Commissioner of External Affairs	27	2	
Marc Vlek	Commissioner of Education & Career & Vice-President	26	1	2

Break started at 14:27

Jens van den Top leaves the meeting

### 13. Discharge Board 2022/2023

Minou says some nice words about her fellow board members.

Minou discharges Emkje van Zuijlekom, Noa de Blaeij, Sophie Kronenburg, Tristan Dieles and Bob Schrijver as part of the Board 2022/2023.

14. Installation Technical Chairman

Job van Druten was installed as Technical Chairman 2022/2023.

### 15. Discharge Chairman 2021/2022

Minou was discharged as the Chairman of the Board 2022/2023.

16. Installation Chairman 2022/2023

The Technical Chairman installs Luc Boender as Chairman of the Board 2023/2024.

### 17. Discharge Technical Chairman

Job van Druten was discharged as Technical Chairman 2022/2023.

### 18. Installation Board 2023/2024

Luc Boender installs Isabel Buch as Secretary of B&R Beurs. After that, he installed Martijn Kuck as the new Treasurer, Sem Burger as the new Commissioner of Activities and Marketing, Robert Collignon as the new Commissioner of External Affairs and Marc Vlek as the new Commissioner of Education and Career & Vice President.



### 19. Voting and Installation Audit Committee

Name	In Favour	Against	Abstain
Tim van Duijn (chairman)	27		1
Noa de Blaeij	27		1

Luc Boender installs Tim van Duijn and Noa de Blaeij as members of the Audit Committee.

### 20. Voting and Installation Supervisory Board

Name	In Favour	Against	Abstain
Hanz Matthee (chairman)	27		1
Alain Faddegon	27		1
Kaching Chan	27		1
Jay Otten	27		1
Job Koning	28		
Kevin Boekholt	28		
Auke Fokkema	28		
Bob Schrijver	26		2

One person did not put in a vote for Bob. Therefore, we made that one abstain.

### Tim van Duijn left the meeting.

Luc Boender installs Hanz Matthee as chairman of the Supervisory Board and Alain Faddegon, Kaching Chan, Jay Otten, Job Koning, Kevin Boekholt, Auke Fokkema and Bob Schrijver as members of the Supervisory Board.

### 21. Plans Board 2023/2024

### President

Good Day everyone! My name is Luc Boender and I have the honor of being the next president of B&R Beurs the coming year. Today, I would like to discuss several of our plans to encompass our vision for the future of B&R Beurs and the steps we are going to take to achieve our goals. Its a special year next year because we celebrate our 40th anniversary next year. During the Lustrum year we will try our best to stand reflect on our achievements, honor those who have contributed to our success and look towards the future with renewed determination. How we are going to do that is something that is our chef Lustrum will tell you more about later on. So first let's dive right into my personal plans for next year:

First and foremost, B&R Beurs has built up quite a professional name over the years. As a society to members at the EUR but also to our partners. I would like to continue that trend and focus the coming year on the professionalization of B&R Beurs. This involves enhancing our brand awareness and solidifying our reputation as a leading student organization in the finance



industry. By investing in marketing efforts and improving our online presence, we can effectively improve our name towards external parties.

Additionally, we must shift our focus towards larger cycles. We want to shift from small, spread out events during the year to bigger centralized events. An example of this is IW&S where we already do that. It is easier for our members to plan for and its also attractive for our partners to join big events.

Furthermore to facilitate a seamless experience for our members, partners and external parties we want to make improvements to our website and app. By enhancing the user interface and incorporating new features (like a better ranking system or clearer partner presentation), we can ensure that our platforms are user-friendly, informative, and engaging.

Next, it's crucial to professionalize our committees. This includes revising the committee structure to optimize efficiency and effectiveness. Already piloting this with the ski trip and IPC which so far and the experience is good so far. To ensure continuity and knowledge transfer, we should create a whitebook that documents the lessons learned by each committee.

Moving on, we made great steps last year with improving diversity and inclusion within the association. To build upon this succes we must continue to prioritize diversity and engagement within our organization. This can be achieved by implementing the engagement plan presented to us by the 39the board. Establishing a sounding board group can also provide valuable feedback to us and lastly we want to continue to aid bonding between investment groups.

Next, let's discuss the Interfaculty. I will be the the next president of interfaculty. We as B&R want to keep this successful collaboration project going but we also want to make sure that our Lustrum year has the prioritization for us next year. My focus in Interfaculty will also be developing a long-term strategy for the Interfaculty will ensure its sustainable growth and impact.

In regards to the National Investment Competition (NIC), we should strive to raise awareness about this competition within B&R Beurs. Additionally, we need to continue our efforts in finding a sponsor to support and enhance the competition. Some groundwork has been done this year and we want to capitalize on this to make sure that the NIC can become successful competition

The LSE Alternative Investments Conference (AIC) is something I will be overseeing as well next year together with Marc. We want to explore the possibility of bringing more members to this conference, allowing them to benefit from the insights and connections it offers. Although this is dependent on how many tickets we get from the AIC. Tickets have been declining the past years but I will do my best to maintain or improve our numbers of spots. Furthermore, we can investigate potential subsidies from universities and partners in London to alleviate the financial burden on our members.

Lastly, let's address the International Week & Symposium (IW&S). Last year was a great succes so we want to continue that trend. We are considering the external locations Villa Rozenlust again for the workshops and for the symposium the Theater Rotterdam is already booked. It will be the 13th of may next year. The main goal we have is to provide more partners from B&R to ensure an equal collaboration with FSR. Also the focus will be on better guidance on topic selection will ensure the highest quality and originality of presentation during the Symposium.



### Secretary

Thank you Luc. Hello everyone, my name is Isabel Buch and I am the Secretary of the 40th board. I am excited to present you my plans for the upcoming year. First, I would like to talk about the brokers. Afterwards, I will share my plans about the investment groups, communication and committees.

### <u>Brokers</u>

Over the past years, there have been many problems with the brokers. For the upcoming year, I want to try to have every investment group at the same broker before the Investment Competition starts. At this moment, we are looking at the possibilities to create accounts at ING for everyone as ING is a professional broker. We will contact the Chairs and Treasurers as soon as we know more about this.

If ING is not possible, we will give the Investment Groups at Saxo the choice to go to Etoro due to the communication and administrative problems at Saxo. However, this is only the option if ING cannot be arranged.

### Investment Groups

For the existing Investment Groups, we will continue with the minimum amount of 12 members per Group and for the new investment groups we will continue with the minimum amount of 15 members. The deadline for creating an investment group will be the 28th of September. By having this deadline, it will be more difficult to create a new investment group and thus only for members with a concrete plan and motivated enough to make it a success. Moreover, it gives me the possibility to arrange the broker in time before the Competition starts. At the extra formation drinks, we will focus on getting new members connected with existing groups instead of creating new groups.

Lastly for the Investment Groups, I want to increase the maximum number of members for investment groups from 30 to 35. This increase is to ensure our goal of continuity and focusing on bigger Investment Groups instead of more investment groups. Moreover, it gives more members of a group the opportunity to stay active which also means that there will stay more knowledge in a group. We will also get back to this later today.

### **Communication**

The upcoming year, I will continue using the weekly email. To increase the opening rates of the weekly email, I will work on making it more attractive to read by using more visuals and less texts.

Secondly, I will be sending messages through the board chat and the chairman mail.

In addition to these, we will use the app more and also promote the app for new members so we will get a higher user rate for the app.

Also, I will create a page on the website for the Chairs and Treasurers of each Investment Groups where they can find information such as relevant documents, a planning for the introduction period and a planning for each month including events and deadlines.

Another new idea is to create a communication channel such as a Whatsapp Group for the members that are not joining an Investment Group. By having this, we will also be able to keep them more informed about our events.

### **Committees**

Lastly, the committees.



I will supervise the Lustrum Committee. Over the past year, this committee already started working on the events for the upcoming year and we will continue with doing so. We have 3 social events planned and two education and career events all spread throughout the year.

I will also supervise the Almanac Committee. This Almanac will also be dedicated to our Lustrum year. Furthermore, we will try to get promotion in the Almanac from relevant partners within Finance or Rotterdam.

### Activities & Marketing

Thank you Isabel,

Activities

### <u>General</u>

As you might know, this year will be a lustrum year. We are celebrating our 40<sup>th</sup> anniversary. As Isabel mentioned earlier, we will host some special lustrum events because of this. This means however that regular activities will be scaled down a bit. On the other hand the goal for this year is to increase the amount of people attending at the activities that will be hosted. Also focusing on internationals as they make more than 40% of our association. This means we will continue to cooperate with ESN as well. I will also be involved in the organization of the Lustrum activities.

Certain activities I am certain that will be held next year. For example: the successful Liga Investimento, the Beer Cantus, the Dies Natalis and a large dinner. Other activities are to be announced while time passes.

The Social Drinks will still be bi-weekly of course. This year there will be themed drinks as well. Such as the Sinterklaas Drink and Christmas Drink and Valentines Drink

### <u>Eurekaweek</u>

This year B&R will be fully attending the Eurekaweek. This is an important moment for us. On Wednesday there is a interfaculty party. The Eurekaweek will be held from 20<sup>th</sup> of August until the 24<sup>th</sup> of August. During the Eurekaweek events we will have goodiebags. The contents will include our intromagazine, and some goodies. The idea is that after following our Instagram account, you will get a goodiebag.

### Tim van Duijn enters the meeting at 15:13.

### Introduction Period

As usual there will be 3 introduction drinks at APARTT. 3 formation Drinks. There will also be 3 introduction academies and afterwards there will be drinks at the Smitse. An Introduction BBQ. And als the introduction weekend at the Zonnewende which will be held 29<sup>th</sup> of September until the 1<sup>st</sup> of October.

### <u>Apartt</u>

At the introduction period at APARTT. There will be posters with a guide for new investment groups. It will be the same kind of concept as last year, but adjusted to the current situation of investment groups. With that we are also planning to divide APARTT into a more structured



manner. The underlying idea is that this way Investment Groups are much easier to find for the Introduction Period Committee and potential new members. Last year there was criticism that Investment groups hardly could be found. This way, we are tackling this problem.

### Marketing

We will be hosting pitches during lectures at the university in the beginning of the new college year. We think this could be an effective way to make new members aware of B&R Beurs. We will especially focus on BA 1&2, and economics students year 1&2. And Master students from Financial Economics and Finance and Investments.

And of course, our beloved introduction magazine will be there in its full glory as well.

We will also use the University for marketing. Think potentially of billboards, flyers and posters.

We will also use Instagram Ads during the Eurekaweek to make potential members aware of our introduction period program.

At the Smitse Drinks there will be beer mats with our logo as well, and the banner will be there too.

Furthermore, we are planning to use more animated material in our marketing resources. This makes it possible to see our posts on Insta reels as well, instead of just pictures.

And the marketing will be more structured across available channels.

### <u> App</u>

To conclude the marketing: this year, we are intending to increase the usage of the App and also increase marketing opportunities of the App. (for example: Push Notifications and Investment competition updates)

*Jay: Do you have any special plans for the introduction weekend?* 

Sem: Of course it is always little bit of a problem to get international members to the introduction weekend. I will make sure we have a close line of communication and one to one conversations with chairs of international investment groups and try to invertise what they would like and maybe adjusting to their needs.

### External

Good day, everyone. I'm Robert Collignon, and I will be serving as the External Relations Officer for the upcoming year. Today, I would like to discuss three key points: Professionalizing Events, Committees, and Cycles.

### Professionalize Events

Last year, during the Investment Week, we introduced name cards and a printed member directory for workshop attendees. This was well-received by our partners, prompting us to implement these features in all our events this year.

To address the challenge of attracting attendees to certain career events like dinners and workshops, we have adopted a new approach by organizing comprehensive cycles. Each cycle will have a specific goal and will encompass a range of career events. This strategy allows for better marketing of the cycles and provides enhanced structure for our members. The primary



objective of these cycles is to introduce our members to various sectors within Finance and Investments.

The cycles we will be organizing are as follows: Career Days, Trading & Commodity Trading Days, Women in Business Days, Alternative Investments Days, Deal Making Days, and Investment Week & Symposium.

Regarding partners, we will prioritize larger partners for our career events while also finding opportunities to collaborate with smaller partners through combined events.

### Cycles:

- Career Days: This cycle will commence in November and aims to introduce members to the finance world while providing them with tools for their post-college life. We will organize workshops, in-house days, network drinks, and dinners with firms from various finance sectors. Additionally, we will offer professional photoshoots for CV and LinkedIn headshots, masterclasses on interview techniques (online and offline), and guidance on writing compelling motivational letters.

- Trading & Commodity Trading Days: This highly popular cycle will feature career events with our trading and commodity trading partners, providing valuable insights for our members.

- Women in Business Days: Building upon the success of last year's women-only cycle, we will organize the Women in Business Days this year. This cycle will focus on careers and social events, as we observed higher attendance for such events.

- Alternative Investments Days: This new cycle will expand our members' knowledge of the alternative investments world, including areas such as private equity, venture capital, real estate, and crypto currency.

- Deal Making Days: Another new addition, the Deal Making Days cycle, will offer insights into the realms of investment banking, financial advisory, and M&A.

- Investment Week & Symposium: This final cycle of the year will continue to be our flagship event, attracting both members and partners due to its immense success in previous years.

### **Committees**

Now, let me provide you with more information about the committees I will be leading.

### Project Management Committee (PMC)

The PMC will be responsible for organizing the stock pitch competition, events to enhance social cohesion within B&R Beurs, and career events outside of the cycles.

The stock pitch competition was a great success last year, and we plan to organize it again at the end of November to provide new B&R members with the opportunity to learn how to effectively pitch a stock.

To improve social cohesion, the PMC will arrange cross-IG interaction events and encourage participation from international members.

Additionally, the PMC will organize career events in collaboration with partners who may not fit within any specific cycle.

### **Editorial Committee**

The Editorial Committee will have the task of composing articles for our website. In order to further promote the B&R Beurs brand, we will actively seek a collaboration with a prominent financial news and investment platform. This partnership will enable us to enhance our visibility and reach a wider audience. Through engaging and informative articles, we aim to provide valuable insights and contribute to the discourse in the financial industry.

### **Education & Career & Vice-President**



Thank you Robert. Hi everyone, I am Marc Vlek and I am this years' Education & Career as well as Vice-President. Today I will give you an insight into my plans for the education and career of B&R Beurs for the next year.

### **Education**

Next year we will keep the same six tracks as we had last year, however I will change the order of the tracks. The Portfolio Management track will be given as a third track, this is because portfolio management is an important topic when having your own portfolio during our Flow Traders investment competition. First we will talk about Fundamental analysis and Macro investing because these topics are quite general, then we will do portfolio management.

To make visiting the academies more attractive we will give away certain prizes to each academy. We will keep the competition for the investment group with the highest attendance that gets a money price at the end of the year. However, we want to provide smaller prices during each academy for the investment group with the highest attendance, in order to try to get more people to attend an academy. Think of prices like a free drink during the social drink after the academy or an investment guide.

Last year the ESG track was done for the first time. From what we observed was the ESG track one of the most popular tracks we did and therefore we will keep this track next year.

Before each academy we will make the academy content more up to date to make sure we mostly cover relevant and recent data and topics.

Lastly, the Alternatives investment track will be more Private Equity and Venture Capital focused. Other topics that will be covered are hedge funds, real estate and commodities. I have decided this after talks with next years' track leader for the Alternative Investment track.

### Alain: Why PE and VC focused?

Marc: It is mostly because the new track leader wants to talk more about PE, also real estate is already discussed by CAIA. We also want to talk a bit about hedge funds and commodities, but other things are already discussed in other tracks.

### <u>Career</u>

Next year we will organize a second Bloomberg Cycle. This year showed us that there is a lot of interest from our members to participate in a Bloomberg cycle and therefore we will organize a second one. In order to make sure more of our members can actually participate in this cycle.

Also, we will increase the marketing for Career Orientation and Development, as a lot of people are not aware of the existence and possibilities of this activity by the Career Committee. People can make an appointment with the Career Committee at any time during the year to help them out with career related questions. For example, where to find an internship or which path in finance fits them best.

Lastly, this years' Career Committee will be bigger and more diverse than last year. This was decided in order to make sure that we can help our members as good as possible during any of our career committee events.



Marc: During our last application period, many first year students applied. It is very hard to find more experienced people for the committee. We will keep looking for more experienced people but it is hard to find.

### <u>General</u>

Last year the board started collecting data during a lot of different activities. The plan for next year is to keep doing that in order to give more accurate member information to our partners and professionalize certain events better. To help us do so, from this year, it will be mandatory to sign up on the website or app for any professional event except the academies. Signing up for events will not bring any additional costs, however it helps us get a better overview of who is attending during professional events.

Also, I will investigate the possibilities for interactive learning material on the website or the app. It will look like the following: an internal competition for your investment group where everyone gets a few academy specific questions (from old exams) after each academy. After each round you will be able to see the table of your investment group with how well everyone is performing. We hope this can help increase the academy attendance as no one likes to lose to members of their own investment group.

Sander: How to increase the engagement for the education events?

Marc: That is mostly about the extra incentives. After three academies, you could already see that one investment group was going to win the competition for the highest attendance. So now we want to give a price each academy so that people show up during the whole year.

Hanz: Any ideas about when a new investment group is founded and how to bring the knowledge up to date with the knowledge of other investment groups?

Marc: We mostly advise them to visit the academies. That is the easiest way to gain knowledge about investing.

*Bob: Did everyone take the investor exam?* 

Marc: Yes.

### 22. Code of Conduct Change

Luc reads out the changes and asks if there are any questions.

Bob mentioned that it is 0.02% instead of 0.2.

27 votes in favor. 1 abstain.

### 23. Budget 2023/2024

Thank you Marc. I will first discuss my plans regarding the committees that I am supervising, then I will explain the budget.

### <u>Ski Trip</u>

Firstly, the ski trip for this year. Since we started early with requesting offers from travel organizations there are more options than last year. This will allow us to book a shorter week.



The trip will be 7 days including the bus rides. We are expecting to confirm the dates in the coming week. During the trip the committee and I will organize several activities. As will be shown in a few slides some budget has been made available for the ski trip. This is to stimulate more members to attend the trip. The ski trip is currently a rather new event that our society organizes. That is why we need to get the trip off the ground. Marketing will fill a key role in this and will therefore receive extra attention. It is important that all our members are aware of the trip. Also for the years to come. The goal is to go to the mountains with 45 members.

### <u>Alumni</u>

The alumni committee will continue the process that has been started by the last few alumni committees, since expanding and maintaining the alumni network is a multi-year process. As it is important to welcome our new alumni, an event will be organized right after the summer break. The Instagram account will also be maintained over the summer. Among other channels, it is used to inform alumni of events and other opportunities to remain involved with the association. Like we started doing last year, we will keep a slightly closer track of information about our alumni. For instance what type of sector our alumni work in. This comes with several advantages with regard to the organization of events.

### City Trip

The city trip will be similar to last year's city trip regarding the type of destination and activities that will be organized. The main difference will be that the interactive activity will be earlier during the trip. This way the members that are attending can explore the city at the beginning of the trip. We are aiming to bring 30 members on the trip, like last year.

Alain: You say you plan to bring along 6 board members; are you reserving spots for 6 board members? Do you think it is fair to reserve for board members?

Martijn: We are at least reserving two spots for board members so then we will aim to bring 34 members

Tristan: Total members will then be 36?

*Martijn: Yes, we want to bring more but there will be budget constraints.* 

Max Fresen: And members in the city trip committee? Are they in the 30?

*Martijn: No, 36 in total including committee and board members.* 

Now I will discuss the budget. On the slide you can see the budget compared to the last three years. And the presented budget at last years GAM and HGAM. We will start with the revenues.

The revenues from the membership are based on the current members and the 600 new members we are expecting. This is a bit more than last year but we expect this because of the introduction of student grants that are returning next academic year. In the calculation, cancellations have been taken into account. The % of cancellations is expected to be slightly lower because memberships have been canceled of members that canceled the past years.

Subscription fees are based on the 600 new members we are expecting, decreased by a percentage of cancellations that is based on past years.

For the subsidy from the university we are expecting the maximum because that requires 74 new members which we are expecting.



General Sponsors are based on the goal that has been set by our past commissioner of external affairs, Tristan. This comes from current partners and the addition of EY corrected for inflation. A slight amount has been added based on the prospect of revenues from sponsoring in the almanac that Isabel mentioned.

Revenues of IW&S are based on the budget that has been presented by the treasurer of FSR. He will take the position of Treasurer of the event the coming year since Noa did it this year and it is always done Every other year.

The AIC revenues will decrease slightly as we are expecting less tickets.

The introduction period revenues are based on the prospect revenues from the BBQ during the introduction period.

Then, the introduction weekend revenues are based on the expected number of members and old board members attending the weekend multiplied by the ticket prices. We expect more people to attend than last year since the study financing is introduced for the next year. This motivates a lot of students to start studying and thus also to apply for student associations.

The revenues that come from activities will decrease with respect to last year's budget. This is based on the final revenues that were realized last year and the fact that we organize slightly fewer regular activities due to the Lustrum.

City trip revenues increase because we will ask a higher fee from our members to take part. Ski Trip expenses have increased to boost the trip and we want to avoid spending all money on the same type of activities.

Almanac revenues are assumed from the amount of almanacs that we predict to sell. Potential sponsoring revenues will be part of general sponsoring.

We are aiming to sell investment guides to B&R Eindhoven again, and thus hope for the same revenue this year.

The ETORO revenues are predicted to become zero as we are hoping to get all our investment groups to ING, a professional broker.

Lustrum revenues are from ticket sales for events.

There will be no revenues from the fintech and investment conference as it will not be organized this year.

Now onto the expenses

Active member expenses are about the same as was realized last year, because we think that it is important to show gratitude toward our active members.

Board expenses and supervisory board expenses will be 4000 and 660 respectively.

Recruitment expenses are a new account. They used to be part of general expenses but they are taken out to increase transparency.

General expenses and licensing expenses will be 3200 and 3900 respectively.

Lustrum expenses are 2000 and will be added to the provision that has been created over the past years.



Social Drink expenses will decrease with respect to last year. We will probably organize one or two less social drinks than last year due to the lustrum. Also, the increase in price which came through last year helps reduce the costs.

Introduction period expenses are based on a budget I made with Sem. This includes, amongst other accounts, marketing costs, EW costs and the introduction drinks.

Introduction weekend expenses are based on the expenses of last year. Corrected for inflation.

External relation expenses are increased slightly due to inflation

IW&S expenses are, like the revenue, based on the budget from the treasurer of FSR

Future in finance will not take place and thus the expenses are zero.

Activities expenses will be slightly lower because we will organize fewer events due to the lustrum, like Sem mentioned. Also the amount of money that is spent on social activities seems to be increasing heavily the past years while there are also other important aspects of the association.

Printed publication expenses are for the almanac.

City trip expenses will be similar to last year since, as just discussed, the trip will take similar form.

Ski trip expenses also increase slightly in an attempt to get the trip off the ground.

Academy expenses are to incentivise members to attend the academies.

Exact expenses and website expenses will be 1190 and 2494. This also includes the costs for the app.

Career expenses are lower because we are intending on having drinks after the stock pitch competition sponsored by a partner.

Marketing expenses are budgeted at 500, like last year. This budget will mainly be used for social media promotion.

The investment guide expenses are based on the investment guides that will be given to our new members.

Investment group expenses increase slightly because we expect to need a few new "lei-codes" and "Kamer van Koophandel" numbers.

Depreciation expenses will increase because we have to acquire new computers.

Legal costs are budgeted at 0 since we are not expecting any.

Career cycle costs are office supplies for the cycles that we are organizing. You can think of name cards and a member directory. This will be about 200 euros per cycle.

Future in finance, fintech conference and the investment conference will not be taking place the coming year and thus there are no expenses budgeted.

In the end I budgeted a loss of 1k. I feel this is justified by the potential of getting a professional broker. The profits of past years can also compensate for the loss. Besides, making profits is not the goal of our association.



Alain: Is the 50K correct for Hanz's year?

Martijn: No, this is not correct. Me and Noa will check this and correct it.

Hanz: Last couple of years we needed legal costs. Now it is budgeted for 0 even though past years we needed it. This is quite a risk.

Martijn: We chose to take the risks based on what we saw in the past.

Hanz: We occurred legal cost for the last 3 years.

*Martijn: Yes, but not over a longer period of time.* 

Hanz: 3 years is quite long.

*Martijn: Maybe also to do with the growth of the association.* 

*Noa: Two years in a row statutes change; we don't expect one now.* 

Hanz: You can better budget for the unexpected as it was also unexpected last year.

Max: Lustrum expenses: only 2000 this year and the past year 5000, what is the reason behind this?

Martijn: In the past year, it was a provision saved for this year. So every year pays a bit but 36<sup>th</sup> and 37<sup>th</sup> did not do so 38<sup>th</sup> and 39<sup>th</sup> a bit extra.

Budget has been approved 27 in favour and 1 abstain

Luc reads out two proverbs out loud.

Tristan: motion: the board had quite a long talk so they must be dehydrated so all rapidly chug an ice

22 votes in favour, 6 votes against.

The 40th board chugs ice! Congratulations. They finished in this order: Sem - Luc - Martijn - Marc-Robert - Isabel.



## 24. Any other business

There was no other business

25. Adjournment



### Attachments

### 1. List of attendants

Name

### **Investment Group**

Luc Boender Tristan Dieles Marc Vlek Martijn Kuck Sem Burger Robert Jr. Collignon Job van Druten Daan Redegeld Sander Kes Tim van Duijn Jay Otten Sophie Kronenburg Noa de Blaeij Bob Schrijver Jens van den Top Alain Faddegon Hanz Matthee Ewout Schulpen Wessel den Ouden Shinyoung Kim Axel van den Berg Isabel Buch Emkje van Zuijlekom Max Fresen Minou du Bois Maud Molenaar

Fides Investments Vico Investments Hercules Fides Investments Mercury Investments Fides Investments Hercules Fides Investments Brût Investments Batavia Investments Batavia Investments Fides Investments Primus Capital Phi Investments Negotium Novum Batavia Investments Aevitas Aevitas CMG Investments Batavia Investments Batavia Vrouwen Batavia Vrouwen Batavia Investments Borsa Valori Brût Investments



### List of authorizations

Pim Somerwil has given authorization to Alain Faddegon. Kaching Chan has given authorization to Hanz Matthee. Martine Witsiers has given authorization to Alain Faddegon.

2. Report of the board 2022/2023

# Board report 2022/2023

Table of contents	
Board report 2022/2023	1
President report	1
Secretary report	4
Treasurer report	6
Activities & Marketing report	8
External and Vice-President report	11
Education & Career report	15

### President report

### <u>General</u>

We proudly look back on our board year. After several years that were affected by Covid, luckily we could organise all events physically again. We kicked off the year with a successful and crowded introduction period, after which we welcomed a large number of members at B&R Beurs. Throughout the year, we focused on delivering great social, career and educational activities, meanwhile launching new initiatives.

By increasing the minimum number of investment group members to 12, we aspired to contribute to the long-term continuation of groups. As a result, the average number of investment group members increased this year. On the educational side, we hosted a masterclass by William J. Kelly, the CEO & President of CAIA and to further increase the focus on the educational side of B&R Beurs, we came up with a new initiative: the stock-pitch competition. Also, we developed the ESG track and we changed the order of academies, resulting in increased academy attendance. On the social side we innovated as well by organising the first B&R Beurs Lustrum gala. And to include all members of B&R Beurs, we set up an engagement & inclusion framework and organised events, especially focused on international and female members. Lastly, a new record was reached for the general sponsoring by partners.

### **Committees**

### Investment Week & Symposium

This year, we again organised the Investment Week and Symposium for 7 days. We kicked-off the week with the Symposium at Theater Rotterdam. Bob Homan from ING was as usual the



moderator, and we welcomed speakers from Robeco, Invesco, ABN AMRO and Van Lanschot Kempen. The event was well organised by the committee. Only there was a high number of noshows (only 400 people from 600+ applications showed up).

From Monday onwards, we continued with the Investment Week. We received approximately 1650 applications for 15 events, which is a great number. During the week, 13 from the scheduled 14 workshops took place. The second workshop of the week was cancelled due to miscommunication. The rest of the Investment Week went smoothly. On Wednesday we also held the M&A Dinner at de Tuin, which went well.

### Alumni

This year, we organised several alumni events, like drinks in Rotterdam, Amsterdam and London, the former-board dinner and a wine tasting. The first drink took place in September already, as we wanted to establish more continuity in the alumni events throughout the year. We saw attendance grow over the year and especially the former-board dinner and wine tasting were visited well and were enjoyed by alumni.

Moreover, we increased the data-collection from alumni, by adding questions about the company, city and financial segment they work in/for to the unsubscription form. With this development, the alumni network can be of more value in the future, as we will be able to contact and target alumni better.

Lastly, we noticed that – even though we market through several channels already – alumni are sometimes still not aware that events take place. Therefore, we created an alumni Instagram account as an additional platform, to create more engagement with what is happening in the alumni network, through for example stories of events. At this moment we have almost 200 followers.

### **Collaborations**

### NIC

In the past, it was an issue that other associations did not update their data, but this year people are more motivated. The initiative is still coming from B&R Beurs and B&R Eindhoven, but the drink we organised at the start of the year with NIC increased the engagement. This resulted in an almost complete ranking now at the end of the year.

We made improvements to the back and front end of the website. It is now available in both Dutch and English. Moreover, we took further steps in preparing the NIC for a paid partnership by setting up an email address, creating email templates, making a list of suitable potential partners, professionalising the brochure, updating the collaboration agreement with the financial aspect and having a decent ranking to show. All in all, preparations are done so that the next NIC board can approach partners right away.

In June, an end of the year event was organised by B&R Eindhoven. Board members and regular members of several associations attended the event. A cup was awarded to this year's winner.

### Interfaculty

During the Eurekaweek we organised the Eurekaweek Party at de Huiskantine. A lot of people showed up – perhaps a bit too much – and the atmosphere was great.

On January 28th, we organised the Interfaculty Gala at Stadscafe Weena. At first, we were aiming to organise a gala with higher capacity, but scheduling a date with 7 associations was difficult and we experienced some setbacks with the location where we were planning to organise the gala at first. Eventually, we found Weena and welcomed 360 people there. The capacity was higher but the gala was not sold out. The feedback we received was that the wardrobe could have been arranged better but that the location was great, it was generally fun and well-organised.



We were aiming to organise the Interfaculty Summer Party in June at Beerkeller. Unfortunately, the event was cancelled because of too low demand. We suspect this was because of the timing in the year with other events and thesis deadlines. And because the location, Beerkeller, might not be that popular for a summer party.

We further professionalised Interfaculty by making a whitebook.

### LSE AIC Trip

On 23 and 24 January, we attended the AIC with 13 members, which is 3 less compared to last year. Unfortunately it was not possible to bring more members this year. We travelled to London by train. We had the annual Alumni drink at 'De Hems' bar in London on Saturday. Sunday was there to explore London. On Monday and Tuesday, we attended the AIC with great Blackstone, speakers from companies such as Oaktree and Man Group. Even though the trip was more expensive this year, 45 members applied (67 last year). We tried to arrange university sponsoring for the trip, but this was not possible. The collaboration and contact with AIC were alright and we already made some efforts to secure more spots for the conference for next year.

### <u>Projects</u>

### Engagement & Inclusion Strategy

This year, we were devoted to increasing the inclusion and connection between members at B&R Beurs. To this end, we sent a survey to the members at the start of the year to learn more about how they rate the culture at our association. Moreover, we interviewed several international and mixed/female investment groups. Insights from the survey and interviews were, together with academy and committee data, used to create an engagement & inclusion strategy. We finalised this strategy recently and it partly serves as advice for future boards. There were also some ideas we implemented this year already.

First of all, we took an active role in stimulating cross-investment group activities, as this lowers the threshold for groups to get together and strengthens the growing association as a whole. We sent out a form to the chairs where they could indicate what kind of activities and type of investment groups they were interested in. We subsequently matched groups based on these preferences.

Moreover, we organised a chair drink in the summer. This drink is for new chairs to meet each other right away, and it hopefully stimulates interaction between investment groups. We organised this drink separately from the chair meeting, as it was indicated during interviews that a drink right after this meeting does not suit some members. 20 investment groups attended the drink and gave positive feedback. However, for future editions we recommend to do this drink earlier in June as a lot of international investment group board members already left the Netherlands on July 4th.

Besides these activities, we officially appointed two confidential counsellors. We hoped this would stimulate members to approach the board if they have negative experiences at B&R Beurs. The confidential counsellors have a separate email address, are stated on the website and were mentioned in the weekly mail. Next year this can be expanded with a member of the supervisory board.

Lastly, more new initiatives related to engagement and inclusion were scheduled in the Future of Finance days that we organised in March. These are evaluated at the External and Vice-President report.


Last year, my predecessor initiated a long-term strategy for the association. This Road to 2027 is a framework that consists of goals, potential means and boundaries and it was halfway at the end of his year. At the start of my year, we continued to work on this with the supervisory board and recently it was finalised. It has been shared with the f.t. 40th board, so it can be implemented from next year onwards.

### Secretary report

### Subscriptions, Unsubscriptions and Totals

This year, we started with 1189 members. During the year, 551 new members joined our society, which brings us to a total of 1740 members. Last year, there were 1854 members, so there is a small decrease. This has to do with the fact that the "studiefinanciering" comes back in 23/24 and that this was the first year after Covid19.

As always, we have to say goodbye to a share of our members at the end of the academic year. This year, 721 members cancelled their membership. This is 41.4% of the total amount of members which seems a lot, comparing to last year with 34.5%. The difference lies mostly in the members who neglected their membership payment and members that did not have an IBAN in their account which caused a high number (16%) of additional unsubscriptions. There were also a few members that seemed uninformed about the cancellation process or forgot to do so. To prevent this we tried to market the unsubscription period as much as possible. This resulted in 535 online unsubscriptions before the deadline. All members got a personal email about the unsubscription period in April and in June. Thereby, it was in the weekly mail from April onwards and we posted it several times on Instagram. It was also on the front page of the website in April, May and June. We expect these measures to result in a lower unsubscription and storno percentage in upcoming years. In the pie chart below, you can find an overview of the way members cancelled their membership.



### **Diversity**

Diversity among our members is one of the themes of the long term goals set in the past few years. We think it is very beneficial to our society to have a diverse group of members. It can be quite hard to improve the diversity and it is crucial that the boards come to think about how they can improve upon it.



	2019/2020	2020/2021	2021/2022	2022/2023
Male	81%	83%	78%	75%
Female	19%	17%	23%	24%
Other/prefer not to say	-	-	3%	1%
Master (new members)	29%	20%	29%	18%
Bachelor (new members)	71%	80%	71%	82%

The statistics concerning diversity are summed up in the table below.

### **Investment Groups & Brokers**

In total, B&R Beurs had 46 investment groups which is 5 less than last year. There were 5 new investment groups founded. The situation with the bank and brokers is still the same for the investment groups. The only option this year to create new accounts was eToro. The groups that already had a broker account at Saxo, could still use it. However, we faced many problems with the board change at Saxo. We tried to open accounts at ING but they stopped opening accounts for societies till June. ING could still be an option for next year. The upcoming board explores the possibilities at ING for the upcoming year. Saxo is still a mess. It is hard to change account owners and it is still impossible to open new brokers. There are no other options for brokers at this moment.

### Investment Groups: Members

Of the 534 newly joined members, 320 filled in preferences and 281 have found an investment group. This means that 88% of the newly joined members found an existing Investment Group, which is 9% more than last year (79%). A reason for this is the code of conduct change. Investment groups should consist of at least 12 members. For new investment groups, this minimum is 15 members. Compared to 7 and 10, respectively. This also resulted in larger investment groups. This year the average amount of members per group was 19.86 compared to 17.14 last year. Thereby, we created the investment group decision tree. This helped members to find the right investment group. It was a great success, many members used it and gave positive feedback. We advise the upcoming board to make an updated version.

After the extra formation drinks, 20 members filled in the preferences and 14 of these were accepted in a group. In addition, there are members who have contacted a group themselves before and after the deadline.

### Almanac Committee:

For the almanac, there was a clear schedule of what still had to be done, new ideas etc. Every committee member has a clear task. There were 2 designers, 2 writers and 1 external. The designers were responsible for the design for the almanac. The writers took care of the content and the external made sure that all the pieces from other societies and parties were available in time. We introduced some new pages. Like a board game, which B&R type are you, sliders and a page about things you can say during sex and investing. The foreword is made by Ahmet Aboutaleb and the CEO of Flow Traders, which we are very happy about. The contact with the printer went well. The committee visited the printer in March to discuss everything and weigh the options. It all went well. The idea was that the almanac was available at the GAM. However,



we thought it was better to make a complete almanac and wait for the end of the competition. Therefore, the almanac will be published in September. This will be a complete edition with all the events from September till the end of June. We ordered 150 almanacs, which is enough. We already sold 120 pieces.

### Lustrum Committee:

To prepare the upcoming lustrum year, we started this year with the lustrum committee. Together with the committee we brainstormed about events that cover all three pillars of B&R Beurs. We end the year with a lustrum opening gala, in collaboration with the activities committee. For next year, there are several events prepared.

### Treasurer report

### Ski Trip Committee

The Ski Trip took place from January 13th 2023 until January 22nd 2023, with a group of 20 participants. The length of the Ski Trip was, therefore, much longer than last year. Overall, we have heard from the participants that they liked the fact that they got the opportunity to ski 6, 7 or 8 days. In that sense, the length was ideal as the longer trip helps the participants bond, get to know each other and make friends. On the other hand, members noted that a trip of 10 days makes it difficult to get that many days off or studies are simply in the way. This might also be the reason that there was less enthusiasm for the ski trip than we had hoped for. At the beginning of the year, we were aiming for 60 participants, but this turned out to be too optimistic.

For the organisation of the Ski Trip we used the services of Totally Snow, as we did last year. This has had its advantages and its disadvantages. We would recommend the f.t. 40th board to explore the option of organising the whole trip with the committee or to start earlier with Totally Snow, and go for a trip of 7 days, so that they can have different options in length and location.

### Editorial Committee

Then, on to the Editorial Committee, things are going smoothly with the editorial committee. Every week, one of the members writes the Investment Competition Update article and every month one of the members writes an In Depth Article. We are happy with the quality of the pieces that have been written. The level of writing in the committee differs quite a lot, which has led to a lower frequency of posting the articles and competition updates. Next to that, we did not do any interviews with alumni because I did not reach out to them.

The committee has written three articles for the Investment Week & Symposium magazine. The themes were: yield curves, artificial intelligence and a cashless society. Overall we were happy with the quality of the articles for the magazine, and one of the articles has an extended version on the B&R Beurs website.

### <u>Debtors</u>

From the summer onwards, so before the Introduction Period, I have been collecting the unpaid invoices from the previous years. At the beginning of the year, we had 26 unpaid invoices. This has now been reduced to 4 unpaid invoices. We decided to write off all of these invoices this year. From the year 2022-2023 we have 4 unpaid invoices, which will be up to my successor to get paid. This will most likely be possible via emails or calls. Furthermore, we decided to leave the amount of the invoices that have been unpaid for more than 90 days in the provision. At this moment this amount is below a thousand euros which means we will take more than eight thousand euros out of that provision.



We see these 90 days as an appropriate threshold as the Commissioner of External Affairs and the Commissioner of Education & Career are in close contact with the partners and we decided to be more alert to overdue invoices. Therefore, we believe that the provision should not be as high as previous years. We have ended this year with a clean slate and I hope that my successors can keep it that way.

### Member Analysis

This is the first year we have used the new direct debit contract. We saw that it is nice to take all the money in one go and then be able to focus on only the members who reversed the payment.

As stated before, we have 538 new members this year. Of these members, 49.8% have paid their membership fee through mollie. We can see that this percentage is only increasing since this was around 21% last year. It can be expected that this will only increase in the upcoming years. From the new members, 5 members have reversed the payment, which comes down to a reversal rate of 0.98%.

For the members who have been with us for more than a year we have the following numbers. 89 members do not have a (correct) IBAN in Genkgo. I have mailed these people four times throughout the year, but they did not pay in the end. Besides the people without a correct IBAN in Genkgo we also had 76 members who did have an IBAN but did not pay for other reasons. We had 8 members who had already been deregistered in previous years and 23 members who were in the membership database more than once. Then we have 21 members who reversed the payment 4 times. This leaves us with a reversal rate of 13.96% for the existing members.

As for all of the members 81 members have not paid due to a failed incasso, and 89 members do not have a (correct) IBAN in Genkgo. In total this comes down to a reversal rate of 9.67%. As said before, I have emailed all members without an IBAN at least four times with requests to pay, however they did not. The members who reversed the direct debit or for whom the direct debit failed have been emailed after every collection batch. I have also tried to collect their membership fees at least four times, however this has been unsuccessful. At the end of this year, we have decided to unsubscribe all the members who reversed the payments and all members who do not have a correct IBAN and failed to reply to the emails.

Since we unsubscribed all members who failed to pay their membership fees this year, and the website includes an IBAN check when members register, we believe that the storno percentages can really improve in the upcoming years.

### Cost Division

Finally the cost division of the association. We can see that we have spent 60% of our money on Food & Drinks. We of course spend a lot of money on the social drinks, and many of the activities include food and drinks. Therefore, it is not a huge surprise that this is our largest spending. Food & Drinks is followed by Venue & Accommodation. A large contributor to that part of spending is the Introduction Weekend. Then travelling, these are costs we make for the City Trip, LSE AIC trip and travelling expenses the Commissioner of External Affairs and Commissioner of Education & Career make to close sponsorship deals.



# Activities & Marketing report

### <u>Eurekaweek</u>

We kicked off the year with the Eurekaweek. The first day was on Sunday, the international day. We spoke to many interested students here and we saw them back at other events as well. The opening of the Eurekaweek and the Huiskantine party took place on Monday. The Huiskantine party was a blast but it was hard to market to potential members as the Eurekaweek only just started. Next year, we could look at the possibility of changing the day of this party. The next activity was on Tuesday, the Campus Day. We spoke to many people again and it was useful. Sports & Play was not that great of a success. Due to the rain, not many students attended Sports & Play and our activity wasn't working because of the rain. Next year, we should look at something that would work with or without rain. Simultaneously to the Sports & Play, the Master Day took place where a short introduction of B&R and what it is all about was presented. During the evening, we hosted a party together with the other Interfaculty associations, which was a success. On the last day, we joined the Festival together with an activity again. We spoke with some people, but some associations had a stand with some food/drinks, which was way more effective. I will advise my successor to do this as well. After the Eurekaweek, 120 new members joined B&R Beurs.

### Introduction & Formation Period

Then, let's move on to the Introduction and Formation Drinks. Lots of people showed up at the Introduction and Formation Drinks and a good amount of new members was realised after this period. Perhaps it was too crowded, because the IPC and Board could barely move through the crowd. After the Formation Period, many new members found an Investment Group and the Introduction Period Committee has done a great job at directing them to the right one. The Introduction Weekend and BBQ took place in between the Introduction and Formation Period. The Introduction Weekend was a great success again at the Zonnewende. The classic events such as the cantus, beer pong tournament, sports & play, two themed parties, and the



information market came back and the reactions were enthusiastic. This year, we decided to host a game night, in which no alcohol was included. However, everybody chose to join the beer pong tournament instead. Every year, it is hard to get internationals and new members to join this weekend. We would advise the 40th board to further look into this on how to improve this. Next year, we will probably go back to the Zonnewende, as the price increase is not that much and the location is perfect. However, my successor can always try to look at other locations as well. The Introduction BBQ also took place. At this event, it is also difficult to include many new members. The 40th board should look into this event, whether it is worth the time or whether they could give another spin to this event. As the Secretary report mentioned before, after the Formation period, more than 88% of the new members found an Investment Group.

### **Activities**

Then on to the Activities that took place this year. We kicked off with the Brewery tour and beer tasting. With 100 members, we went to the Brewery Noordt and had a tour together with 2 beers to taste. The reactions were enthusiastic and it is likely that we will organise something like this again in the future.

In January, we went to Proeflokaal Bregje with 100 people. Everyone enjoyed themselves and, as every year, it was a great success. There was a slight hiccup at the beginning of the event as Bregje did not have the tables set when we arrived, but this issue was resolved after 10 minutes. We will definitely be hosting this event again next year.

The first Active Members Day took place at Mooie Boules. Although the attendance was disappointing, we had a great time. We prevented this from happening again by sending multiple reminders to sign up and multiple reminders to cancel if you're not able to attend the event anymore. We advise the 40th board to do this as well.

Then, we organised the pub crawl, which was a great success. Many people showed up and the feedback was positive. However, next time, I would make sure that there is a highlight/activity at all bars instead of only drinks for B&R prices at Apartt.

After some great activities, it was time for the Cantus again. This year, we sold 140 tickets, which was a little bit less than last year. However, during the event we noticed that a lower amount of attendees was better as we had walking space in between the tables. If the 40th board wants to make the cantus bigger next year, we would advise them to look at other venues to host it.

The international karaoke was part of the Future of Finance days, but we organised it together with the activities committee. The event itself was quite a success, but the initial purpose of it got lost in translation. We would have loved some internationals present at the event, but in the end only Dutch students joined. We will get back to this problem later.

In April we hosted the yearly pooling tournament at Poolcafe Delfshaven which was a great event and the participants had a great time. We also offered the opportunity for them to play darts. The only downside was that Delfshaven is quite far away from the city centre.

The second active members event was an active members dinner at 't Zusje. There were 50 people present and we enjoyed the evening with a lot of tapas. This time, we knew exactly how many members were coming because of the reminders described above, which worked quite well. If there is enough budget, we would advise the 40th board to do this event again as there is an opportunity to really sit down and have a good conversation with other active members.

This year, we hosted a wine tasting with 70 people at Walsjerot for the first time. The participants got a card and could choose and tap their own wines, they also received lots of



snacks. We received a lot of great feedback from the participants and the event was sold out in no time.

The second edition of Open EUR Festival took place on June 6th. The event was set up big, but the attendance was a bit disappointing. Many people had their thesis deadline and, although we had marketing throughout the campus, many people hadn't heard of it. The next edition will take place in September, and it will be the opening party of the Erasmus University's 8th Lustrum, so we expect this edition to attract many people.

After a year of absence, Liga Investimento took place again at Antibarbari. The tournament was fully sold out with 12 teams participating, and some teams on the waiting list as well. We would advise the 40th board to organise this, but make it a bit bigger than last year to give all Investment Groups a chance to participate in this amazing event.

This year's celebration of the birthday of B&R Beurs, the Dies, was a fun event at the Huiskantine. However, the timing of the event was not right as many students had exams and at the end of the year it's always busy with other activities. Next year, they should host it in April again, which the 38th board did as well. In this way, the event will be more crowded and therefore the celebration will be bigger.

One social drink we would like to mention is the last Social Drink, the Cocktail Drink. During this drink, we, together with Apartt, introduced the B&R Cocktail. This yellow and green cocktail will be available at Apartt anytime you want, and during the Social Drinks it will be available for a reduced price.

On the 30th of June, we opened the Lustrum Year with a festive Lustrum Opening Gala. The ticket sale was disappointing. We were surprised by this, as we took the feedback that gala's are too expensive in consideration and therefore offered two ticket prices. One with 5 coins, and the other with 10 coins. This way, the attendees could choose how much they wanted to pay ( $\leq 23,50$  or  $\leq 37,$ -). We asked for feedback to all chairs and they indicated that people still had exams, vacation, and almost all internationals went back home already. On top of this, many other associations planned their own activity on this date, which made it even harder to invite them as well. We learned a valuable lesson from this that we should take this into account when planning such a big event. The evening itself was a success and everyone had a great time. However, the loss B&R made on this gala due to the attendance number was a downside.

We closed our year off with the end of the year activity: the Beach BBQ and Volleyball at Hoek van Holland at beachclub FFtijd. We travelled to Hoek van Holland with 60 members, and enjoyed a BBQ and unlimited drinks for 3 hours. The BBQ was good and people enjoyed themselves playing volleyball until the late hours.

### <u>Marketing</u>

As we mentioned at the GAM, after the Introduction & Formation Period, we reached an amount of nearly 2500 followers, compared to last year of 2000 and the year before that of 1500. We managed to market most of the activities in time. However, this was sometimes challenging during big events Future of Finance days. We also got some feedback that not all information is at each marketing channel. For example: the registration period was sometimes missing, the location of an event was not known yet. All in all, we would advise the 40th board to be consistent and not market something when not everything about an event is known.

Next to that, we, the Marketing Committee and us, introduced the Bi-Weekly schedule, where we share a clear overview of the upcoming events and deadlines, as this was some of the feedback we received from the Chairman meeting. During the last few weeks of the academic year, we stopped sharing the bi-weekly schedule as there were no new events to be promoted.



We're incorporating the Board WhatsApp group chat and weekly mail for more engagement, as this is more effective these days. We also included more posters in the marketing of events we offer such as the Future of Finance days and the Investor Exam.

## **External and Vice-President report**

This year marks another success in our pursuit of connecting members to their next step in finance. This is, of course, mostly dependent on the partners and the quality of partnerships and events we offer. Let us start with the partner portfolio.

### <u>Partners</u>

Building on the basis formed by previous Commissioners of External Affairs, we increased the number of partners to 37 (including IW&S and LSE partners). Here, we parted ways with companies that were less of a fit and connected to 10 new partners. Our aim was to cover all segments within the financial sector for all members.

The first group of partners to be discussed are the Asset Managers. Here, we find some familiar faces such as Aegon, Cardano, CBRE, Privium and some of the biggest pension funds such as APG and PGGM. This year, we also added some bigger names such as Van Lanschot Kempen and Invesco where both participated in IW&S and the former attended one of the Women in Finance dinners.

In terms of Banking and Deal-making, we have extended our collaboration with ING. Moreover, NIBC also continued their partnership with us. In the M&A landscape, we retained our connection to PwC by organising a successful Women in Finance dinner. KPMG's strategy consulting arm is a new partner and also joined the Women in Finance dinners. By adding them and establishing connections to Deloitte and EY, we have gained ground in connecting to the big four. As M&A boutiques have proven to be a nice stepping stone for our members, we collaborated with familiar names such as IMAP and Yes Corporate Finance at our M&A dinner. Concluding this segment with Private Equity, we have progressed to more partners in this regard. We have now hosted activities with Egeria, Gimv and Vortex Capital Partners.

On the more quantitative side of our association, we have retained partnerships with the familiar four: Da Vinci, IMC, Flow Traders and Optiver. We have also connected London-based G-Research. Extending our connection to the huge world of Commodity Trading, we have established a partnership with the Erasmus Commodity & Trade Centre. They connected us to COUNT Energy, Interfood and Vitol. Furthermore, we have managed to keep some big and influential players in this area: Cefetra and Transtrend.

This amounts up to €43,259.62 in general sponsoring, beating our target of €30,000 which was set at the beginning of the year. This is another record set this year – credits, of course, also go out to Bob, improving the record of €34,366.00 which was achieved last year.

### <u>Events</u>

This year consisted of five cycles spread throughout the year and some standalone events. The Women in Finance dinners will be discussed later on. Bob will touch upon the Financial Engineering Cycle.

### **B&R Beurs Career Days**

A returning event was the B&R Beurs Career Days which had 300 applicants. This year, this cycle consisted of nine events. Judging from the feedback we received, it was a success. The participants have said to like the content of the activities as well as the format with some



relevant partners. The partners (*Van Lanschot Kempen; IMAP; Transtrend; KPMG; Aegon; AF Advisors; Egeria; Da Vinci; AFS Group*) were happy with the participants. They did mention, however, that the workshop times and duration could be more flexible. The Da Vinci inhouse day unfortunately got called off because of too many cancellations. Some thought should be put into how to navigate this in the next years.

### **B&R Beurs In-House Cycle**

We then proceeded with the B&R Beurs In-House Cycle. This was an event which we introduced in our schedule rather late. We did so as we noticed high demand for inhouse days from both sides. Unfortunately, we managed to get less applicants than expected and this resulted in the cancellation of the APG event. We suspect that the timing of the registrations (during the Christmas holidays) was not ideal. The Vortex event ran smoothly.

### **B&R Beurs Commodity & Trading Days**

In March, we organised the B&R Beurs Commodity & Trading Days in collaboration with the Erasmus Commodity & Trade Centre. The latter provided us with big names within the commodity trading space (*Cefetra; COUNT Energy; Interfood; Vitol*). Furthermore, we had some quantitative partners (*IMC Trading; Flow Traders; Transtrend*). We organised a successful Commodity Trading Dinner where we connected 25 students to three partners; and multiple inhouse days. Unfortunately, the turnout to the (especially quantitative) events were disappointing. We feel that the name of the event did not fully appeal to pure quants. We reached a number of 137 applications for the six events.

### **Investment Week & Symposium**

As mentioned before, the Investment Week & Symposium was a huge success. With 1,646 applications for the 15 events and around 600 tickets given out for the Symposium, we really elevated the event to the next level. The event consisted of a M&A day; a M&A boutique day; a fund day; an asset management day; two trading days; a private equity; and a M&A dinner. We got some very nice names in there partially due to the collaboration with FSR for this event. The Symposium was well-received too as the event itself was very well put together – thanks to a good collaboration and committee. Some topics were too similar though, and we have instructed our successors with possible ways to resolve this. To specify, we had ING returning, and new speakers in Robeco, Van Lanschot Kempen, Invesco and ABN Amro. On our side, Cardano, Cefetra, Flow Traders and Privium collaborated.

### Other

Some standalone events we hosted were the M&A dinner and the Risk Management dinner. The format worked well and both events had a nice number of applicants.

### **Professionalisation**

Furthermore, great efforts have been made in accomplishing our aim of professionalising the role and our events. This adds a lot of value to both our members and partners. We have introduced standardised feedback forms to collect the data of all of our events. The objective of collecting more data has been pursued in all different domains of the association.

We also constructed a form to structure the communication between us and the partners more efficiently. This prevents (too) frequent emails and calls which go back and forth and overall just smoothens the process on both sides. Moreover, we have made extensive efforts in capturing all events. These pictures are widely available on the website and shared with the partners – who, in turn, often post them on social media. Additionally, they are also used for our own marketing.



### City Trip Committee

The City Trip was truly one of the highlights of the year. We travelled with a group of 36 members (30 tickets; 4 committee members; 2 board members) to the cornerstone of modern civilization: Athens. The trip was filled up within two days – mostly due to good marketing and the price/quality of the trip. Credits go out to the very capable and motivated committee for this achievement.

There was one hiccup in booking the flight tickets as we made the wrong reservation and booked a day shorter than intended. This was resolved by making some rearrangements in the planning and coordinating with the hostel to book for one less night. Unfortunately, this meant some concessions in the amount of free time during the trip.

Besides this, the programme was very well received (with the exceptions of the museum and open-air cinema) and the feedback that came in mentioned the very high price/quality of the trip. The communication was timely and clear; though the request was to send the packing list earlier. The hostel was very nice. We divided everyone into the rooms and that would also be a recommendation for next year. Lastly, we want to highlight that the marketing this year was spot-on. We worked with teasers and communicated the dates as early as January.

### Project Management Committee

This year, the Project Management Committee has finally been revived and reinstated righteously. The committee has shown that it can be a connector of the different pillars upon which B&R Beurs is built – which the Engagement & Inclusion plan has shown to be crucial. The year consisted out of the following events:

### Future of Finance Days:

The Future of Finance Days were introduced to create more engagement of all members throughout the whole association. The results were mixed.

The event was supposed to be kicked off by the returning Investment Conference. Though extensive efforts and preparations were made, the event was cancelled due to the lack of speakers. If started on time, this could turn out as a nice event. The question remains if enough demand from the members exists.

Then, we organised two Women in Finance dinners. The first one was hosted by PwC at Fjord Eat & Drink. It turned out to be a success. The decoration and atmosphere was good. PwC only took recruiters with them and that's something we would advise against in the future. The other dinner was organised with KPMG and Van Lanschot Kempen. Same format, different day – only less recruiters.

To engage more internationals in our social pillar, we organised a karaoke and a pub quiz. The karaoke was very fun and Fame has become a true hotspot on Thursdays, but no international members were present. We feel that dividing these events throughout the year could engage more international members as the pub quiz was well-attended. We hosted the pub quiz alongside ESN and we delivered most attendees. It was fun, location could be better but a good-old night at ESN Tuesday made up for that.

Lastly, we planned the speed-networking event. This event on paper has great potential in creating meaningful connections between investment groups. We prepared some talking points (i.e., investment-related; social; and philosophic). Unfortunately, this did not turn out in



the way we envisioned. We had some applications but nowhere near enough to provide a quality event. We suspect that the extensive week and the name were the culprits.

### **Stock-Pitch Competition**

The Stock-Pitch Competition was a fan-favourite. We had 9 applying teams of which 6 handed in a pitch deck. The best 5 were selected and battled it out in front of a jury of ACTIAM, Cardano and Gimv. The event and its pitches were quite professional and included a catered break; subsequent drinks; prize money of €375; a photographer; and Slido for the audience to ask questions and upvote others. We had around 60 attendees. The event was received well and I recommend the continuation of this initiative as it fits the identity of B&R Beurs rather well.

# **Education & Career report**

This year, we further increased the attendance of both our educational and career events. This contributes to further development of these two pillars within our association. Let us start with education.

### Education

### <u>Academies</u>

The academies went well this year. Due to the fact that we changed the order of the academies (i.e., finish each track before a new one started), the attendance slightly increased. Incentives such as books for all academies and the pizzas after the last academy of the academic year seemed to work. The following figure represents the attendance *based on the filled out attendance by the attendants themselves*. This gives a proxy of the actual attendants, but cannot be considered as the actual numbers. For the next board, it is strongly advised to count all attendants during all academies. Ideally, for all masterclasses and Professional Academies, we would like members to subscribe for the event on our website.



The following tracks were presented: Fundamental Analysis, Macro Investing, Alternative Investments, Derivatives, ESG Investing, and Portfolio Management. These tracks were presented throughout the year in this order. ESG Investing has officially become part of the



academy tracks this year and was quite popular, especially compared to Algorithmic Trading which was in that place until last year. Furthermore, data on the attendees has been captured more extensively this year.

The academy committee has done great work this year and ensured that the level of knowledge within our association further increased.

	Ranking Attend	lance	
No	Investment Group	Points	
1	Audacity		87
2	Vico Investments		32
3	Hercules		26
4	CFQ		19
5	Vae Victis		16

Audacity had the highest attendance for all (professional) academies. Therefore, they received a price of € 500.- to spend on a social activity with their investment group.

### **Professional Academies**

For all tracks except Portfolio Management, we organised Professional Academies. For the ESG Investing track, we even had 2 Professional Academies.

Fundamental Analysis:SilverCrossMacro Investing:APGAlternative Investments:CAIADerivatives:Da VinciESG Investing:Gimv, AF Advisors (pilot case)Portfolio Management:-

For 3 of these Professional Academies, we hosted networking drinks at either Erasmus Paviljoen or Café 'In de Smitse'. This remains a perfect way to informally speak to these partners about topics in practice and their career paths, while enjoying some (non-)alcoholic drinks and snacks.

We continued the ranking of attendance for all (professional) academies. This seemed successful to further incentivise our members to attend. The attendance price went to Audacity. It worked well to double the attendance points for professional academies.

### Private Markets Seminar by CEO & President of CAIA: William (Bill) J. Kelly

On December 2nd, 2022, we welcomed the CEO & President of CAIA, William Kelly, to our campus. He held a seminar about perspectives, opportunities, and challenges in private markets. This was very informative and great to welcome him on campus. This would be great to organise again in the next academic year.

### <u>Masterclasses</u>

Four masterclasses took place, which were not part of the academies. Two masterclasses by Transtrend and AF Advisors were part of the B&R Beurs Career Days. Harold de Boer gave a very interesting masterclass about the carbon footprint of trading futures. The third masterclass was given by Zanders. They gave an interesting masterclass about Treasury, which is a topic that is not well known among all members. Lastly, the fourth masterclass was by G-Research, who told us more about quantitative research in London.



### Investor Exam

Then, as the final topic within the education space, the Investor Exam. The Investor Exam took place on Thursday, June 1st. This year, 21 people actually took the exam, out of which 12 people passed the exam. All these people were eligible for one of the two CAIA scholarships that CAIA gives away. The passing rate was decreased to 62.5%, since this exam was made slightly worse compared to previous years. Moreover, creating a passing rate based on a 5.5/10, which is the passing rate at Erasmus University Rotterdam, while adjusting the estimated correct answers by guessing, resulted in this rate.

### Flow Traders Investment Competition

Well, the biggest thing we actually do within our association, the Flow Traders Investment Competition. This year, we could luckily organise this competition the full period again, so no simulation competition was needed. 15 investment groups have used Saxo and 31 investment groups have used eToro. This solution has not been optimal, due to differences in transaction costs and spreads. Therefore, it is recommended to keep looking for other solutions.

### Financial Engineering Cycle

This year, the Financial Engineering Cycle (FEC) was cancelled. We managed to schedule two masterclasses. Unfortunately, these were cancelled last minute. For this year, we already recommended the next board to further develop the structure of this event with the aim of ensuring this event to successfully take place. This includes a more strict collaboration with FAECTOR, ensuring that all tasks are clear for both associations.

### ESE Finance 1

This year, we continued the collaboration with the Finance 1 course at Erasmus School of Economics. 52 students participated in the competition. We believe this is still a valuable collaboration with Erasmus University to maintain a sustainable relation. It is recommended for the new Commissioner of Education and Career to try to make the competition more involved in the course. Discuss together with the professor whether it is nice to have the additional exercises again, like a few years ago.

### Сагеег

### **Bloomberg Cycle**

The Bloomberg Cycle was held in March. On three consecutive days (i.e., Monday until Wednesday), we held three workshops, each from 5pm-7pm. The Career Committee prepared and further updated these tutorials and were responsible for these workshops. 20 members could participate. Those who completed all workshops, were given the B&R Beurs Bloomberg Certificate. This was again very successful, as the event was full in 2 minutes after the registrations opened. The next board is already recommended to organise this cycle at least twice the next year.

### Mentorship Programme

For the Mentorship Programme, we opened the registrations in May, which was quite late this year. In total, 22 members and 9 mentors signed up for this programme. We managed to match 7 people to 5 mentors. For the next year, it is recommended to start earlier in the beginning of the second half year. Moreover, the marketing could be improved for this.

### **Career Orientation & Development**



Regarding this programme, formerly known as the Recruitment Database, has not been given much attention this year. This brings us to the aim of the career committee. Meetings have taken place with the next Commissioner of Education & Career about the future structure of both this committee and this concept. Ideally, you prefer more experienced students in this committee, whilst these students most of the time do not want to join a committee anymore. That is why it is recommended to let relatively young students join this committee to be responsible for the Bloomberg Cycle and Mentorship Programme. After some years, these people could be responsible for the meetings with members to discuss their possible future career paths.

### LSE AIC Trip

As part of the career pillar, we organised the London School of Economics Alternative Investments Conference (LSE AIC) trip again this year. As already discussed, this trip lasted from Saturday to Wednesday.

On Wednesday, we were welcomed at Man Group and PIMCO for a presentation about their firm and available career opportunities. For next year, we would definitely recommend visiting Man Group again. Man Group is a well known hedge fund in London, which is specifically looking for people with a STEM background. This profile is in line with the people that the LSE AIC is looking for.

### Professionalisation

As part of further development for this role as well as B&R Beurs as a whole, we came with some recommendations for the next Commissioner of External Affairs and Commissioner of Education & Career. We recommended a better structure around the organisation of career and educational events. This includes the communication with partners, registration periods and deadlines, sending feedback forms, and automation of creating name badges.

Furthermore, larger updates have been made to the white book, to further increase the quality of the handover to the 40th board. This has been done in particular for this role, but together with the entire board, we also applied changes to the white book (i.e. checklist of all matters that we cannot forget when training the new board).



### 3. Report of the Audit Committee 2022/2023



P Postbus 1738, 3000 DR Rotterdam T +31 (0)6 - 11 87 98 52 E kascommissie@bnrbeurs.nl

#### **B&R Beurs Erasmus Investment Society**

Dear Member,

On behalf of the Audit Committee, I am pleased to present its report for the year ended June 30th 2023. The audit committee has reviewed the balance sheet per 30 June 2023 and the income statement for the period I July 2022 up to and including 30 June 2023 of B&R Beurs Erasmus Investment Society.

Based on these reviews and our discussions with the treasurer, we have the opinion that the annual report gives a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities of the Society at June 30th 2023 and the financial results for the reporting period.

We would like to inform the General Assembly of Members of some important points as result of our audit. First, a substantial amount of debtors has been collected which resulted in a lower amount of accounts receivables. To account for the financial risk associated with the inability to invoice these remaining debtors, a provision of 996,15 euro has been advised to the treasurer.

Second, we are excited to celebrate our lustrum next year and have already experienced our first lustrum activity. Besides the social impact, a financial impact can also be seen from the rise in activities expenses. Hence, we agree with the addition of 4k to the lustrum provision. Furthermore, we agree with the other provisions proposed by the treasurer which includes outstanding expenses, almanac and the end-of-year BBQ.

Third, we would like to stress the importance of having funds flow back to the members of the society. We are happy to note a downwards sloping trend of positive net results over the past years. We advise whomever holds the position of Treasurer next year to further improve this budget accuracy.

We want to congratulate the current board on her achievements during the past year. We propose to discharge the treasurer of the board of B&R Beurs Erasmus Investment Society and hope that the new board will continue on this prudent path regarding the financial prosperity of B&R Beurs.

On behalf of the Audit Committee,

T. van Duijn Chairman



A.A. Mustafa Member





Bezoekadres: Burgemeester Oudlaan 50, 3062 PA Rotterdam, room P-1.074 Postadres: Postbus 1738, 3000 DR Rotterdam kascommissie@bnrbeurs.nl www.bnrbeurs.nl



### 4. Report of the Supervisory Board 2022/2023

Rotterdam, 13 July 2023

Supervisory Board report 2022-2023

Dear member,

On behalf of the supervisory board, I am pleased to present our report for the year 2022-2023 of our association.

We look back at our first year without any COVID restrictions in a long time. Although there were slightly less members this year than last year, the association is still much bigger than it used to be in the recent past. With our current size, it is a big challenge for every board to keep organizing events for as many members as possible while also keeping the focus of the association on its mission to provide knowledge and insights about investing to its members. With regards to organizing events, we think the board has performed well. With a busy introduction period to welcome many new members, starting preparations for the upcoming lustrum year, continuing relatively new events for B&R such as openEUR and the skitrip, the board has organized lots of activities in which many members were able to participate. Besides this social aspect, the professional aspect in line with the society's mission has also been highlighted this year. A new academy structure to increase engagement has proven to work well. Of course, the Investment Week & Symposium was organized again successfully and also new professional events were organized such as the Stockpitch competition and the women in finance dinners as part of the future of finance days.

Less visible to our members – but just as important to the wellbeing and functioning of our society – is the work that has been done on the backend of B&R. Tireless work has been done by the board to find solutions to the unfortunate situation with the availability of brokers we find ourselves in. We are hopeful that a proper solution will be found. The databases have been cleaned up, which will allow future boards to have a better view of who our members are and plan events and budgets accordingly. I would encourage the upcoming board to continue this professionalization of B&R Beurs to ensure long-term stability.

I would like to thank the 39th board of B&R Beurs for all their hard work, dedication, and perseverance they showed in making this year a success. I would also like to thank the audit committee for their work and support to us in financial matters of the association. Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all my fellow supervisory board members. Your dedication and commitment to B&R Beurs was invaluable to support and advise the board this year.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, Alain Faddegon



# 5. Last years budgets

Income	Budget 2023-2024		Actuals 2023		HGAM 2023		GAM 2022		2021-2022		2020-2021		2019-2020
Membership Fees	€ 73	3.566,90	€ 77.219,40	€	77.195,25	€	79.002,00	€	74.931,81	€	60.736,50	€	56.975,00
Subscription Fees	€ 5	5.700,00	€ 5.330,00	€	5.040,00	€	6.000,00	€	5.500,00	€	7.460,00	€	7.050,00
Erasmus Subsidy	€ 2	.550,00	€ 2.550,00	€	2.550,00	€	2.550,00	€	2.550,00	€	-	€	-
General Sponsors	€ 38	3.500,00	€ 43.261,00	€	40.000,00	€	30.000,00	€	34.366,16	€	24.295,60	€	31.456,00
Revenues IW&S	€ 32	.440,00	€ 28.280,32	€	29.500,00	€	29.500,00	€	32.354,19	€	23.304,72	€	1.700,00
Revenues LSE AIC	€ 1	.400,00	€ 1.581,20	€	1.581,20	€	5.000,00	€	4.286,77	€-		€	2.944,00
Introduction Period Revenue	€ 1	.500,00	€ 1.901,40	€	1.901,40	-							
Revenues Introweekend	€ 9	.800,00	€ 8.411,03	€	8.411,03	€	9.771,96	€	9.233,35	€-		€	9.650,00
Revenues Activities	€ 15	6.000,00	€ 14.190,90	€	25.000,00	€	25.000,00	€	27.229,70	€	8.241,93	€	3.680,00
Revenues City Trip	€ 10	.200,00	€ 8.052,70	€	8.840,00	€	8.000,00	€	6.262,85	€·		€	-
Revenues Almanac	€	700,00	€ 794,83	€	828,38	€	500,00	€	791,39	€	280,00	€	925,00
Revenue Investment Guides	€	382,50	€ 382,50	€		-	425,00	€	883,00	-	2.323,15	€	2.023,00
Bad Debtors	€	-	€ 7.651,60	t									
Etoro Revenue	€	-	€ 11.757,76	€	9.000,00	€	-	€	14.235,14	€-		€	-
Lustrum Revenue	€ 1	.500,00		t		t							
TOTAL REVENUES		.239,40	€ 211.364,64	€	210.229,76	€	195.748,96	€	212.624,36	€	127.391,90	€	117.153,00
					,								
Expenses			Actuals 2023		HGAM 2023		GAM 2022		ALV 21-22		2020-2021		2019-2020
Active member expenses	€ 6.	.000,00	€ 6.108,26	€	6.500,00	€	5.000,00	€	4.904,23	€	-	€	-
Alumni Expenses	€ 5.	.000,00	€ 4.666,30	€	5.000,00	€	4.000,00	€	2.989,85	€	-	€	-
Board Expenses	€ 4.	.000,00	€ 3.800,00	€	3.800,00	€	3.800,00	€	3.500,00	€	2.865,15	€	3.155,00
Supervisory Board Expenses	€	660,00	€ 660,00	€	660,00	€	660,00	€	759,50	€	656,27	€	439,00
Recruitment Expenses	€ 1.	.500,00											
General Expenses	€ 3.	.200,00	€ 4.776,61	€	4.500,00	€	6.500,00	€	15.033,72	€	10.346,87	€	7.112,00
Licensing Expenses	€ 3.	.900,00	€ 3.840,96	€	4.250,00	€	-						
Lustrum Expenses	€ 2.	.000,00	€ 5.000,00	€	5.000,00	€	2.000,00						
Social Drinks Expenses	€ 20.	.000,00	€ 22.908,19	€	23.600,00	€	23.000,00	€	19.798,19	€	15.339,99	€	18.025,00
Introduction Period Expenses	€ 17.	.926,45	€ 18.487,85	€	18.775,52	€	17.008,16	€	14.727,25	€	12.097,10	€	11.190,00
Introweekend Expenses	€ 20.	.214,39	€ 19.436,91	€	19.436,91	€	22.042,51	€	20.409,73	€-		€	14.319,00
External Relations Expenses	C	950,00	€ 962,41	€	1.150,00	€	800,00	€	597,63	€	598,19	€	1.363,00
IW&S Expenses	€ 32.4	440,00	€ 27.078,86	€	29.500,00	€	29.500,00	€	805,71	€	19.109,37	€	943,00
Future of Finance Expenses	E	-	€ 1.138,56	€	2.000,00	€	1.000,00						
LSE AIC Expenses	€ 3.	.489,37	€ 3.965,19	€	3.965,19	€	7.400,00	€	8.716,06	€-		€	3.724,00
Activities Expenses	€ 34.	.000,00	€ 48.371,59	€	49.000,00	€	38.000,00	€	50.242,28	€	37.680,11	€	15.333,00
Printed publications Expenses	€ 3.	.500,00	€ 4.103,85	€	3.925,00	€	3.500,00	€	4.718,61	€	5.115,94	€	6.242,00
City Trip Expenses		.040,00		_	15.000,00	_	12.880,00	-	10.976,91	_		€	194,00
Ski Trip Expences		.000,00		_	1.830,00	_	600,00	-		F-		-	
Academy Expenses		.000,00		_	1.700,00	_	2.000,00	€	2.897,11	€	3.681,83	€	530,00
Constitution Drink		.000,00		_	3.077,12	_	2.400,00	_	2.257,94	_		€	2.538,00
Exact Expenses		.190,64		_	1.089,00	_	1.089,00	_	1.070,85	-		-	
Website Expenses		.494,80		_	2.494.80	_	2.395,80	_	2.858,93	€	6.057,65	€	-
Career Expenses		750,00		_	750,00		250,00	_	127,05	_	139,31		199,00
Marketing Expenses		500,00		_	500,00	-		€		F-		-	
Investment Guides Expenses		.192,50		€	1.113,00	_	1.000,00	-	2.500,00	€	2.158,31	-	
Investment Group Expenses		.600,00		-	2.200,00	-	2.395,00	_	2.563,30	_	2.606,45	€	2.917,00
Depreciation		.700,00		_	2.400,00		2.044,88	_	2.845,73	_	3.626,26		5.774,00
Legal Costs	C	-	€ 1.152,74	_	1.500,00	-	1.500,00	_	1.379,91	_	605,00	_	
Career Cycle Costs		.000,00	,	Ē		Ē		-		ŕ	,	-	
Bad debtors		.000,00	€ -	€	-	€	1.077,00						
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES		.248,15		_	214.716,54	_	193.265,35	€	209,034.68	€	125.877,96	€	94.103,00
OPERATING RESULT	€ -1.	.008,75	€ 3.585,16	€	-4.486,78	€	2.483,61	€	-10,645.46	€	1.513,94	€	23.049,00
Non-operating result	E		£ .	€	7.055,95	€		€	14.235,14	6	6.199,05	6	485,00
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST		.008,75		_	2.569,17	_	2.483,61	_	6,552.35	e	7.712,99		23.534,00
						_							
Net interest		450,00			15,41			€	2 590 69	€.		€	17,00
NET RESULT	€ ·	-558,75	€ 3.600,57	e.	2.584,58	e.	2.483,61	C	3,589.68	€	7.712,99	e	23.551,00



6. Slides

B&R Ber





- Agenda
- 2. Agenda
   3. Announcements and documents received
   4. Approval of the minutes of the SGAM 2023
   5. Board 2022/2023 report
   5. Board 2022/2023 report
   6. Financial report
   7. Voting on document received
   8. Audit Committee report
   9. Uscharge audit Committee
   10. Supervisory Board report
   10. Uscharge supervisory Board
   12. Voting Board 2023/2024

2

# Agencia 13. Dicharge 2022/2023 Board 14. Installation Technical Chairman 15. Dicharge Chairman 2023/2023 16. Installation Chairman 2023/2024 17. Dicharge Technical Chairman 18. Installation Board 2023/2024 19. Voting and Installation Audi Committee 20. Voting and Installation Supervisory Board 21. Panas Board 2023/2024 21. Panas Board 2023/2024 23. Budget 2023/2024 23. Budget 2023/2024 24. Any other business 25. Adjournment B&R Bours Communities and a state of a state of a state

3

Agenda





CARAR P



10



#### Collaborations

- NIC
   Complete ranking
   Improved website
   Preparations for involving a partner (email templates, updated
   collaboration agreement, list of potential partners etc.)
   End of the year event by B&& Eindhoven

12









#### Secretary Report - Investment Groups

- Flow Traders Investment Competition of 46 groups
- eToro and Saxo

19



20



21



Commissioner Activities & Marketing
Activities HCAM
Berger Tour
Christmas & New Year Dinner
Active Members Day
Pub Crawl

23



24

B&R Bours













B&R B





Commissioner of External Affairs - Events

B&R Beurschamn Ody & Trading Park B&R Beurschamne (Jyteents - 2.2.83 applicants per event Financiate/Bioglobie/Bioglobients - 2.2.83 applicants per event Financiate/Bioglobie/Bioglobients/Bioglobient B&R Buerschamne (Jyteents - 2.2.83 applicants per event Financiate/Bioglobie/Bioglobients/Bioglobients/ Barbard (Jyteents) B&R Buerschamne (Jyteents) B&R Buerschamne (Jyteents) B&R Buerschamne (Jyteents) B&R Barbard (Jyteents) B&R Barba

32









•	Masterclasses	
	<ul> <li>Transtrend</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Zanders</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>G-Research</li> </ul>	
	Investor Exam	
	<ul> <li>CAIA scholarships linked to the 12 best scores</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>62.50% score to pass. Achieved by roughly 57% of participants</li> </ul>	
	Flow Traders Investment Competition	
	<ul> <li>Combination between eToro and Saxo</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Solution not optimal</li> </ul>	
Riterration	samua investment Society (Barbeurco)	B&R Boun

nts Confe

ice (LSE AIC)

B&R Bo









44



45



<section-header><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item>

Sarting at 26 suppli movies     Inf 2022 at uppli movies     Awrite offs     Provision	
BBRBeurs Erzemus Investment Society (borbeurs n)	B&R Bours











1.	Opening	
	Agenda	
	Announcements and documents received	
	Approval of the minutes of the SGAM 2023 Board 2022/2023 report	
	Financial report	
	Voting on document received	
	Audit Committee report	
	Discharge Audit Committee	
	Supervisory Board report	
	Discharge Supervisory Board Voting Board 2023/2024	
12.	Voting Board 2025/2024	
คลามโกรม	nus investment. Society (Borbeurs of	A 848 8

					Re	ve	1005								
Expense	100	-	1000000	-	CONT NO.	-			AN INFORM		CONTRACTOR OF	-	-	-	-
Adventury high from	14	27,218.46			79,302.00		74,851,81	R	75,000.00		62,655.78		48,136,54	<del>.</del> .	34,45
Automation Fact	14	1.000.00			0.000.00		1,100.00		1,100.00		7,008.00	14	1.444.00		7,016
Economica Substativ	- e	2.550.00	2358.08	10	2,550.00	147	1.559.00	x	3,556.00			ic.		£	
General Sponeors	16	43,252,00			30.800.00		34,366,35		26,000.00		25,008.08		14,295.00		21,456
Neuroset 1985	- C	24,286.12	0.0000	4	33,500.00		\$1,914.20	•	34,000 30	÷	24,002.00		33,894.12	ε.	1,720
Navernae 854 Caser Days	14							×		٠					
Neurosen USE A.C.	- K	3,581.29	1.585.25	κ.	1,805.80	۰.	4,066.77	4	2,766.60	4	4,308.00	4-		6	2,544
introduction period incomed	14	1.601.49													
Novements 2015/windshird	14	8,411-33		κ.	8,771.86		9,233.25		1,116.31		16,118.00			6.	3,450
Revenues Activities	- K	14.100.00		۰.	15,800.00	*	31,228.30		16,560.00		4,706.00		8,242,00	6	3.680
Newman Dig Trip	-1 e	8,252,29			6,000,00		6,262,85		1,530 80		7,122.00				
Revenues Almanat	<u>_</u> <	796.43		κ.	500.00		791.30		980.00		1,356.00		290-00		625
Aprenue Investment Guides	14	342.56		×	435.80	۰.	883.00	e.	1,586.80	.4	X.156.00		3,829,15	€	2,005
Reserves Investment Cardenance	16		C 100 C	4											
Bad deficiery Revenue		7,455.68	e = 0.0	٠											
Plane Bearing	14	41,757.76		5		٤.	34,295.34		30,000-30					٤	
TOTAL REVENSES		211,364.54	C 210.228.75		185,748.96		211A24.30		174,328,85		134,875.78	36 T	327,381.90		117,156

					Ev		505	-						_
Tabernan .					COMPANY OF	-	100 2011 2011	-	AN INCOME.	Concerns of		Brack Mills Har	-	-
the paths/ second		6.178.15		10.00			4 000.11		1.00.00	0,000,000	-	-	-	
Autor Caretary	- 21	4.005.30		08.00			1.000.00		1,000.00	2		Q (2)	2	
Roant Tenenters	- 21	1.600.00		EE 00			3.580.00		3,596,00	Ý 14	14.00	1 185.0	÷.	1.05.00
Construction's Related Trainerson	÷.	945.00	÷ 5	00.86	6 645.0	ю ж	76.12	÷.	100.00	a	04.00	4 896.27		10.22
									996-00					
INEC Concesso		27,076-66					33,150,96		34,388.00		02.00	<li>K 13,100.17</li>		943.00
MARCANE Charl Reported														10.00
Diff will Organizes		1,965.12		65.12			4,716.08		1.462-00		95.00	£		1,154.00
Printed publications Trajonants				05.00			4,75846		5,014.54		54.58			1,342,00
Diry Trip Expension		15,806.42		00.90			20,876,85		12,002.00		02.00			296.02
Academy Expansion		1.623-65		00.80	< 1.001.0		1.897.11		3,000.00		ai. io			539.94
Denetitiumon Entrick	- C	3,679.12		12.15			2,257.94	*	1,400-00		84.00	6.	ε.	2,518.88
Partnersh conference			6		4 1,006.0			4	2,065.00		65.00			
Investment Carlennus					< 1051				ing.00		01.00	< es.iz		4.00

					Expense	s &	Results								
Fuent Taxantaria		1.007.51		100.00 1	1.053.05		1000		1101.00						
Rebuilt Exponen		1,494.80		2,054.85 1	2,995.80		2,818.95		1,892,93		1,396-00		8,017.45		
Earenir experies		1,541.85		150-08 K	258.00		\$37.05	٤.	750.80		158.00	۰.	198.20	۰.	198.05
Marineting angelenant		405.57	÷ .	100.00 X	100.00	1.6.		÷	100.00						
Investment Guides Expenses				1113-00 €			7,506-88		2,535.85		3,128.00		2,158.00		
investment Group Teperane		2,206.67		2,206-06 K	2,395.00		2,563.30		3,300.00		2,526-00		2,606.45		2,517,08
Department		2,044,65		2,400.00 K	2,644,88		2,845.75		1,750.80		3,758.00		3,626.26		5,774.08
HAD ONLY		1,232,74	4	1308.00 4	1,500.00	. 6	1,379.90		2,459,41	ε.	1,100.00	۰.	405.08	6-	
Bad dollars	- e		۰.		1.877.00										
TOTAL OPERATORS COPENDES	- 6	281,775.48	4	216,756.34 4	196,065.85	4	200,004.48	4	\$71,796.80	4	150, 795-00	4	135,877.87	٤.	94,338.08
OPERATING RESULT	÷	1.985.16	4	-446.78 4	-114.30	6	-10,645.46	¢	-1,447.45	€	2,85 23	¢	1,513.94	•	23,545.00
Non-control result				1005.00 1			34,555.54	•	10.000.00				6.199.05		
TARBINGS BEFORE HUTCHEST		3.585.16	4	2,588.57 €	-316.91	4	1.585.68	٢.	4,552.95	٢.	2,855.23	1	7,712.08	1	25,534.08
Not adared		15.45		15.43 6				•				4-		6	17.08
							1,689.48		6.053.31		2,865.29		7,712.98		23,551.00







Discharge Audit Committee

 Support Support Report

 9. Opening

 9. Opening
 </

	Opening	
	Agenda Appouncements and documents received	
	Board 2022/2023 report	
	Financial report	
7.	Voting on document received	
8.	Audit Committee report	
9.	Discharge Audit Committee	
10.	Supervisory Board report	
	Discharge Supervisory Board	
12.	Voting Board 2023/2024	
sta	smus investment lissed by berbeurcal	CARAR E



1. O	pening	
2. A	genda	
	nnouncements and documents received	
	pproval of the minutes of the SGAM 2023	
5. Bi	pard 2022/2023 report	
6. Fi	nancial report	
7. V	oting on document received	
8. AI	udit Committee report	
9. Di	ischarge Audit Committee	
10. St	ipervisory Board report	
	ischarge Supervisory Board	
	oting Board 2023/2024	



















B&R Bours





B&R B



82

85

Voting and Installation Audit Committee Tim van Duijn (chairman)
Noa de Blaeij

83











B&R B



Voting and Installation Supervisory

Board

84

Voting and Installation Supervisory Board Hanz Matthee (chairman)
 Alain Faddegon
 Kaching Chan
 Jay Otten
 Job Koning
 Kevin Boekholt
 Auke Fokkema
 Bob Schrijver B&R Bours

Plans Board 2023/2024 In Sickings 2022/2023 Board
 I. Sickings 2022/2023 Board
 I. Installation Technical Chairman
 2023/2023
 I. Installation Technical Chairman
 2023/2024
 I. Sickings Chairman
 2023/2024
 I. Installation Board
 2023/2024
 I. Installation
 I. Installat B&R Bours 86

Plans Board 2023/2024 President – Luc Boender
 Secretary – Isabel Buch
 Commissioner of Marketing and Activities – Sem burger
 Commissioner of External Affairs - Robert Collignon
 Commissioner of Education and Career & Vice President – Marc Viek
 Treasurer – Martijn Kuck in a streat Code Liberhaure P. Bark 87











<section-header><list-item>

 External - Robert Collignon

 • energenerating

 <t







Code of Conduct Change Change of maximum amount of 30 members per Investment Group to 35 members per Investment Group The MSCI World EUR Hedged benchmark will be included in the ranking Value f in the M2 formula can not be lower than 0.2 For the Investment Groups that use eToro, the rules explained in article 18 also hold for investments in CFDs. B&R Bo tment lociety/borbeurs.nl

#### 101











105

B&R Beurs

And all the second second		Arrest Male	margaret 1	-	20100	C AND AND	Cash and
					84,786,74		
	1.000.00						

Augustum 1	and a second of	1000	ADDE AND	ARR 100	111.1	-	-
					100.00		
instrument 4		113A	1 (0.000.04)		95.5.1	10.000.0714	141.00
CA AC harries 1	2100.01 4	186.0			156.9		
Preparamente daman d	100004 4	1.00 P					
No Technologie 4	DOUGH C		1.96.9	1 1000	2286474		144
Address of the second	1000	1000	100.0		- 1823	1000	10.0
			1.0711				
Constitute Ind	100000	100.0	10011	1 146.00			
						1000	
Anterio anterio di							

Budget 2023 - Results 
 Distribution
 C
 CHILD
 C
 CHILD
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 B&R Bou

107

14. Installation Technical Chairman 15. Discharge Chairman 2022/2023 16. Installation Chairman 2023/2024 17. Discharge Technical Chairman 18. Installation Board 2023/2024	
16. Installation Chairman 2023/2024 17. Discharge Technical Chairman	
17. Discharge Technical Chairman	
18. Installation Board 2023/2024	
19. Voting and Installation Audit Committee	
20. Voting and Installation Supervisory Board	
21. Plans Board 2023/2024	
22. Code of Conduct Change	
23. Budget 2023/2024	
24. Any other business	
25. Adjournment	



14.Discharge 2022/2023 Board	
15.Installation Technical Chairman	
16.Discharge Chairman 2022/2023	
17.Installation Chairman 2023/2024	
18.Discharge Technical Chairman	
19.Installation Board 2023/2024	
20.Voting and Installation Audit Committee 21.Voting and Installation Supervisory Board	
22.Plans Board 2023/2024	
23.Code of Conduct Change	
24.Budget 2023/2024	
25.Any other business	
26.Adjournment	



Thank you for your presence & input!